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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
A 5 4 22

Note 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
M —B-hE Z—T-\F ZE-+f =T F -ZT-1f
Revenue (Hk$ 000) W (FET)
a. Construction ARgE 264,918 1,274,528 912,789 822,377 704,126
b. Property leasing bERE 157,460 149,405 142,952 145,202 142,048
¢. Property development CHIERRE 191,032 - - - -
613,410 1,423,933 1,055,741 967,579 846,174
Segment results (H$000) PREE(FET)
a. Construction ABE 84,931 172,882 88,536 72,693 66,142
b. Property leasing bEHRE 86,373 89,013 86,679 89,824 92,264
¢. Property development CHEERE 58,833 (15,884) (3,484) (18) (35)
230,137 246,011 171,731 162,499 158,371
Underlying profit (4k$ 000) BEORR (FE71) () 129,581 171,292 120,297 116,734 116,090
Current ratio BN 2 2.62 379 4.89 1.07 1.19
Gearing ratio EXBELLE (i) 141.1% 129.7% 100.1% 43.3% 50.7%
Net gearing ratio FEREELLE (i) 135.3% 116.0% 83.1% 36.3% 42.3%
Return on equity i NEE: 5.3% 6.2% 7.7% 16.2% 15.5%
Note: Hat -

(i)  Underlying profit is arrived at by excluding the effect of changes in fair ()  EESHEF DR ERGEFINRIREME 2 A FEE
value of investment properties from profit for the year &)

(i)  Gearing ratio represents total interest-bearing borrowings divided by (i) BARBEHRIEEBERGABREERBRIA

shareholders’ equity and multiplied by 100% 100%

@iy ~ Net gearing ratio represents total interest-bearing borrowings net of cash (i) FEABEL RIENKBIB L LRTHERE 2 @5
and bank balances, divided by shareholders’ equity and multiplied by 21 R DA MR PR AR % 8 JR A 100%
100%
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—2-hE T\ -FtF —T-XF —T-0f
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS £
For the year ended 31 March BE=ZA=1—HIFE
Revenue 2§ 613,410 1,423933 1,055,741 967,579 846,174
Profit before taxation BRE AR A 177,114 205,395 227,318 427,110 352,149
Profit for the year FRGEF 149,000 171,787 203,020 401,929 327,813
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 March R=A=+—H
Total assets BEE 7,050,797 6,725,357 5,540,781 3,829,800 3,482,638
Total liabilities Baf 4,236,275 3,960,253 2,905,828 1,356,073 1,362,729
Total equity Fibi ey 2,814,522 2,765,104 2,634,953 2,473,727 2,119,909
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
eV £ 8

Chan Hung Ming
R 7L B2

Chairman

FE

./ 4

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Grand Ming Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am delighted
to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019 (“FY
2018/19").

RESULTS

The Group's underlying profit for FY 2018/19, excluding the fair value
gains on investment properties, amounted to HK$129.6 million,
representing a decrease of HK$41.7 million or 24.4% from HK$171.3
million for the corresponding year ended 31 March 2018 (“FY 2017/18").
Underlying earnings per share was 18.3 HK cents (2018: 24.1 HK cents).

The Group's profit for the year was HK$149.0 million, inclusive of the
increase in fair value of investment properties of HK$19.4 million (2018:
HK$0.5 million), representing a decrease of HK$22.8 million or 13.3%
when compared with that of HK$171.8 million for FY 2017/18. Earnings
per share was 21.0 HK cents (2018: 24.2 HK cents).

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends payment of a final dividend of 5.8 HK cents per
ordinary share of the Company (the “Shares”) each to shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 5 August 2019. Subject to approval
by the Shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting, the
proposed final dividend warrants is expected to be dispatched to
Shareholders on 15 August 2019.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)

EJE Ak (4)

Together with the interim dividend of 4.0 HK cents per share already
paid, the total dividends for the year ended 31 March 2019 will amount
to 9.8 HK cents per share, representing a payout ratio of approximately
53.7% (based on the total dividends for FY 2018/19 and the Group's
profit for the year excluding the increase in fair value of investment
properties).

REVIEW OF OPERATION

Construction

The Group's construction business primarily consists of provision of
building services as a main contractor in property development projects
for prominent local developers, as well as existing building alterations,
renovation and fitting-out works services. Revenue derived from the
construction business decreased by approximately 79.2% or HK$1,009.6
million, from approximately HK$1,274.5 million for the year ended 31
March 2018 (“FY 2017/18") to approximately HK$264.9 million for the
year ended 31 March 2019 (“FY 2018/19"). Decrease in revenue was
mainly because the construction project at Kai Tak were substantially
completed in the previous financial year, resulting in much lower
percentage of revenue being certified during FY 2018/19.

During the year under review, the Group secured a new construction
contract of the proposed composite development at Kai Tak, Kowloon.
As at 31 March 2019, the value of construction projects in hand
amounted to approximately HK$1.63 billion.

Data Centre Premises Leasing

The Group owned, developed and leased out raised floor space of two
high-tier data centre buildings which were purposely built for data
centre use and feature high level of reliability, redundancy and security.
The first high-tier data centre, namely iTech Tower 1, maintained a high
customer utilisation and contributed a stable rental income inflow
to the Group. The second high-tier data centre, namely iTech Tower
2, also operated well and contributed revenue stream to the Group
progressively.

Revenue derived from data centre premises leasing business improved
by approximately 5.0% or HK$7.2 million, from approximately HK$145.0
million for FY 2017/18 to approximately HK$152.2 million for FY 2018/19,
primarily driven by the increasing utilisation and revenue contribution
from the tenants of iTech Tower 2.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)

EJE Ak (4)

Property Development

Tsing Yi Sai Shan Road project

The Group's first property development project is situated at Sai Shan
Road, Tsing Vi, New Territories with a gross floor area of approximately
400,000 square feet for private residential purposes. It will provide
around 780 units in two towers, with units ranging from one-bedroom to
four-bedroom and special units. The site formation and foundation works
are now progressing, and construction is expected to be completed in
early 2022. In April 2019, the Group had applied for presale consent of
this project and is now pending the approval.

To facilitate the upcoming sales of the Tsing Yi project and future
development projects, the Group had, through the acquisition of
Excel One Global Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary Marvellous
Investments Limited (collectively referred as to “Excel One Group”),
acquired several shop premises at the basement, ground floor and first
floor of No. 39 Chatham Road South, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon for the
purpose of establishing the sales office and accommodating show flats.
Renovation work is now in progress and is expected to be completed in
June 2019.

Cristallo

The en-bloc residential building situated at No. 279 Prince Edward
Road West, Kowloon, with a saleable area of approximately 32,000
square feet, was acquired by the Group in October 2017 through the
acquisition of the entire interests of Market Rise Limited together with
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Able Business Development Limited and
the shareholder’s loan at an adjusted consideration of approximately
HK$814 million. The property is a completed luxurious low-density
residential building located in the traditional luxury district of Kowloon
and is named “Cristallo” by the Group. It offers 18 residential apartments
in which each unit sizes from about 1,300 to 2,700 square feet. This
development project is well received by the market since its launch for
sales by tender in April 2018.

During the year under review, sales and delivery of 2 apartments had
been completed. Revenue of approximately HK$191.0 million was
recognised accordingly. In addition, up to the date of this report, the
Group had entered 10 provisional sales and purchase agreements in
respect of sales of 10 apartments with aggregate contract sales of
approximately HK$425.6 million. Completions are scheduled to take
place in the period from July 2019 to October 2021.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)

EJE Ak (4)

OUTLOOK

The global business environment in 2019 is overcast by considerable
uncertainties. On one hand the US-China trade friction does not show
any sign of settlement within a short period of time. On the other hand,
the upward interest rate cycle seems to have come to a halt. In Hong
Kong, notwithstanding the local economic growth and stock market had
been dampened by the US-China trade war, the current low mortgage
rate and ample liquidity in the local banking system substantiate the
end-user demand for the local residential properties. In view of this, our
Tsing Yi project will be launched to the market for sale after the presale
consent is granted. Meanwhile we continue to devote effort to sell the
remaining units in the Cristallo project.

We maintain an optimistic view on the property market and are actively
seeking and identifying opportunity to replenish the land bank for the
property development business. For the data centre business, we
continue to upgrade our data centre infrastructure and strengthen
the support to our tenants. At the same time, we keep on exploring
opportunity to develop new data centres outside Hong Kong. The
development of our construction business is hindered by the shrinking
tender contract sum and profit margin due to severe competition among
rival companies. As a result, we would adopt an extremely prudent
approach in bidding new construction projects and act only when a
reasonable profit margin is attained from new project tender.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the Board
for its brilliant leadership, to the Shareholders for their strong support,
and to the community for their enthusiastic help, and last but not least,
to our staff for their dedicated efforts.

Chan Hung Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o BILJE w w Be a3 B

FINANCIAL REVIEW

In the FY 2018/19, the Group's consolidated revenue amounted to
approximately HK$613.4 million (2018: HK$1,423.9 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 56.9% as compared to the corresponding
period of last year. The decrease was largely due to a 79.2% decrease
in revenue from the building construction segment, offset partially the
impact of revenue recognised on sales of Cristallo properties in the
property development segment.

Consolidated gross profit dipped slightly by 1.0% from last year to
approximately HK$266.4 million (2018: HK$269.3 million). Yet the gross
profit margin was significantly improved. These were mainly attributable
to the sales of Cristallo properties and recognition of additional work
done in a construction project.

Operating expenses (inclusive of selling and general and administrative
expenses) for the year increased by 55.0% to approximately HK$59.8
million (2018: HK$38.6 million), primarily due to marketing expenses and
sale commission incurred in respect of the sale of Cristallo project and
increased depreciation charge arising from the own use properties of
basement, ground floor and first floor shops at No. 39 Chatham Road
South, Kowloon which were acquired in April 2018.

Finance costs for the year increased by approximately 80.9% to
approximately HK$53.5 million (2018: HK$29.6 million), which was due
to (i) continued interest rate hike since 2017 which pushed the Group’s
average interest rates on variable rate borrowings to about 3.70% (2018:
3.02%) and (i) increasing bank borrowings for acquisition of Excel One
Group and for general working capital purpose.

Net profit for FY 2018/19 was approximately HK$149.0 million (2018:
HK$171.8 million), representing a decrease of approximately 13.3%
when compared to that of FY 2017/18. Excluding the change in fair
value of investment properties, the Group recorded an underlying
profit of approximately HK$129.6 million in FY 2018/19, representing a
decrease of approximately 24.4% as compared to an underlying profit of
approximately HK$171.3 million in FY 2017/18.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

o B Wl M W (A7)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group finances its operations and capital expenditure with its
shareholders” fund and bank borrowings. A variety of credit facilities
are maintained which had contracted repayment terms ranging from
repayable on demand to 19.1 years. As at 31 March 2019, the Group
had outstanding bank borrowings of approximately HK$3,970.8 million
(31 March 2018: approximately HK$3,585.3 million). The gearing ratio
(defined as total interest-bearing borrowings divided by shareholders’
equity) of the Group was approximately 141.1% (31 March 2018:
approximately 129.7%). Increase in the gearing ratio was mainly
contributed by the drawdown of bank loans for the Group's general
working capital, financing the construction of Tsing Yi project and
acquisition of Excel One Group.

The Group adopts a conservative approach in managing its cash
balances, which are mainly placed in bank accounts and short-term
deposits with reputable banks in Hong Kong. The total cash balances of
the Group as at 31 March 2019 were approximately HK$162.7 million (31
March 2018: approximately HK$378.2 million), most of which were held
in Hong Kong dollars. The current ratio (defined as current assets divided
by current liabilities) of the Group was 2.62 times (31 March 2018:
3.79 times). Taking into account the cash at banks and credit facilities
available, the Directors considered that the Group has sufficient working
capital for its present operation and future business expansion.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank borrowings,
which bear interest at floating rates. The Group had in place a treasury
policy by which the exposure to floating interest rate risk was mitigated
by the use of interest rate swaps. As at 31 March 2019, the Group
had outstanding interest rate swaps with the notional amount of
approximately HK$70.4 million. These swaps have fixed interest rates
ranging from 1.3% to 1.8% per annum and will mature in 2020 and 2021.
In addition, the Group had entered into forward starting swaps with
notional amount of approximately HK$1.57 billion to lock in fixed rates
of 2.1% to 2.63% per annum for 3 years. These interest rate swaps are
effective in April and May 2019 and January 2020.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as
substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

o B Wl M o M (A7)

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, bank loans of approximately HK$3,970.8 million
are secured by certain assets of the Group with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$6,638.6 million.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, the Group had
no other capital commitments as at 31 March 2019.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2019.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

On 13 April 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company had
completed the acquisition of the entire interests of Excel One
Group. Since then, Excel One Group becomes indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company and their financial results are consolidated
into the Group’s consolidated financial statement. Details of the
acquisition had been set out in the Company’'s announcement dated
15 December 2017, annual result announcement for the year ended 31
March 2018 dated 11 June 2018 and 2017/18 annual report.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies during FY 2018/19.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had a total of 168 employees as at 31 March 2019. Total
remuneration of employees for FY 2018/19 was approximately HK$115.7
million. The remuneration policy and packages of the Group’s employees
are periodically reviewed by making reference to the prevailing market
conditions. The components of remuneration packages consist of basic
salary, benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits and contributions to mandatory
provident funds, as well as discretionary bonuses which are determined
according to individual performance of employees.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Except for investments in subsidiaries, the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other company during FY
2018/19.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at the date of this annual report, the Group did not enter into any
agreement in respect of any proposed acquisitions and did not have any
future plans relating to material investment or capital assets.

12

EEEM

RZZB-NF=ZA=+—RH FrEEETEE H
BRI E#66.386E 8 7T - B 3 A E#)39.70818
BITHRITERIEL G -

BEARERE
BRI TSR MR EE S ARER TN
FZA=1T—HELEHMEREE-

HARME
AEBER-E-NFZA= T BAMEARA
BfE-

MEBARARBELTANERRBRUE

R-B—-NEFENA+=0 ARARNE—2EHNBR
BB SEA UK BB EXcel Onefe BIM 2 ER4E2E - B It -
Excel One B AR N RINEEZEE2ENB AR
HUBEEHALTEBGEMBHREN - WES
By HABCHRARRBSMA-T—+tF+ A
+hEZAHG BRAE-_ZT—-NEXA+—BZ
HE_Z—-\FZAZ+BULEFEENE2FEEE
N 2017/18F 3RIA »

B bt AT 4% B8 & 41 - R R B 2018/194F [E A If &
HtpERRERHEMB AR RBE QT -

EBERFHMER
R-E-NE=ZA=+—H AEBHE163ZE
8 2018/19FE M B T FHM41.157(88 7T - &

EHMBEEHTR TR EENTFIBE LG
BoHHEBEREATS EWEM - HEER
MEHMAESET UREREAARRBRETNE
ISIELL

FEEARE
BRI E M B A RSN A EBR2018/19F EHAL
A EEMEARE -

ARERAREHNEXEEE
RAFHRBH NEBESEREFZZRBERSF

EAHE AYBEMEMERREARERER
BEE-

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
oG Wk

The Directors are pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY 2018/19.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of building
construction, property leasing and property development. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to
the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group's principal activities during FY 2018/19.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for FY 2018/19 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 57 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of 4.0 HK cents per share was paid on 12 December
2018. The Board recommends payment of a final dividend of 5.8 HK
cents per share to Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 5 August 2019. The proposed final
dividend warrants is expected to be dispatched to Shareholders on 15
August 2019

It is the Company’s policy to reward Shareholders in participating
the Company’s profit whilst retaining adequate capital for business
development. The Board may declare or propose payment of dividends
after taking into account a number of factors, including the results of
operations, financial conditions, working capital, capital requirement and
other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Company currently, subject to the factors and considerations above,
pays dividends twice a year in the form of interim and final dividend.
Cash dividends will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. Other distributions,
if any, will be paid to Shareholders by any means which the Directors
deem legal, fair and practicable.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine entitlement of Shareholders to the right to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 23 July 2019 to 26 July
2019, both days inclusive, during which period no share transfer will be
effected. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, all share transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong (and with effect from 11 July 2019 onwards, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong) for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 22 July 2019.

In order to determine Shareholders who qualify for the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from 1
August 2019 to 5 August 2019, both days inclusive, during which period
no share transfer will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong (and with effect from 11 July 2019 onwards, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong) for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 31 July 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and the outlook of
the Group’s business are provided in the Chairman’s Statement section
from pages 6 to 9 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group can be found in the Chairman’s
Statement, including the financial risks mentioned in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section and note 31 to the financial statements.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights and
Management Discussion and Analysis sections of this annual report. All
the above sections form part of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and business partners
are the keys to the sustainable development to the Group. The Group is
committed to building a close and caring relationship with its employees
and business partners, and improving the quality of services and
products to the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most vital and valuable assets of the
Group. The Group ensures that all staffs are reasonably remunerated,
regular seminars on safety for specific type of works and activities and
safety induction training are provided for all employees as well as the
subcontractors’ employees.

The Group stays connected with its customers and has ongoing
communication with them through various channels such as physical
meetings, telephone and electronic mail communication to obtain their
feedback and suggestions.

The Group establishes long-term business relationship with the
subcontractors. Through the past dealings with the subcontractors,
the Group has acquired sufficient appreciation of their expertise and
strengths so that it would enable us to maintain our quality standards.

The Group also places effort to build up and maintain good relationship
with various commercial banks as the Group's businesses are capital
intensive and require on-going funding to maintain continuous growth.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Company endeavours to protect the environment in which it
operates its business. The Group’s construction and data centre leasing
segment have established environmental management systems and
were certified by Certification Asia (HK) Limited to be in compliance with
the requirements of ISO 14001:2004.

During FY 2018/19, there was no material non-compliance in relation
to air pollution, noise control, disposal and emission of construction
wastes. Green office practices are also encouraged in the operation
of the Group's businesses, such as double-sided printing and copying,
setting up recycling bins, sending and presenting corporate documents
or information to the members of the Board in electronic format, and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lighting and electrical
appliances.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

=R ()

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) will be
published within three months after the publication of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During FY 2018/19, no material non-compliance of the laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company was noted. In
addition, discussion on the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code is included in the Corporate Governance Report.

DONATIONS
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$39,000.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group is set out on
page 5 of this annual report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets (including investment properties
and property, plant and equipment) during the year are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS
Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31 March 2019 are set out in
note 23 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
The amount of interest capitalised by the Group during the year is set
out in note 8(a) to the financial statements.

SHARE ISSUED AND SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 61 of this annual report and in note 27(b) to the financial
statements, respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers in aggregate was 34.7% and 82.3% of the
Group's total sales for the year respectively.

The percentage of purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier
and the five largest suppliers in aggregate was 11.7% and 41.3% of the
Group’s total purchases for the year respectively.

One of the five largest customers of the Group during the year was
the spouse of Mr. Lau Chi Wah who is an executive Director and had
interests in 53,146,830 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s total number of issued shares) had an
interest in the five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association (the “Articles”) and there is no restriction against such rights
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:
Executive Directors Independent
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Ka Wah

Mr. Kan Yau Wo

Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill

Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny

Mr. Chan Hung Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Chi Wah

Mr. Yuen Ying Wai

Mr. Kwan Wing Wo

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. The retiring Directors will be eligible for
re-election. It is proposed that Mr. Kwan Wing Wo, Mr. Tsui Ka Wah and
Mr. Kan Yau Wo shall retire from office by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group as of 31 March 2019 are set out on pages 29 to 35 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
9 August 2013, being the listing date of the Company (the “Listing
Date”), and such appointment continued thereafter unless terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service agreement.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 9 August 2016, and such appointment may be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant
statutes for the benefit of the Directors of the Company. The permitted
indemnity provisions are provided for in the Articles and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of
potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may
be brought against such Directors.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives in Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") which (a)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Name of Group
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Number of

ordinary Approximate

member/associated Capacity/Nature shares held percentage of
Name of Director corporation of interest (note 1) shareholding
BAE
rEBREAT ZEREE B
BEEnR HEEE A 5o HEME (5#1) Bk
Mr. Chan Hung Ming The Company Interest of a controlled 478,321,470 (L) 67.39%
corporation (note 2)
FR FLAA L A& PAN/NSS = EE R (i22)
Chan HM Company Limited Beneficial owner 1 100%
Chan HM Company Limited ~ ZzZ#EHB A
Mr. Lau Chi Wah The Company Interest of a controlled 53,146,830 (L) 7.49%

corporation (note 3)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
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Note:

The Letter “L" denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the
Company or the relevant associated corporation.

Mr. Chan Hung Ming holds 100% of the issued share capital of Chan HM
Company Limited, which owns 478,321,470 shares out of the total number
of issued shares of the Company. Therefore, Mr. Chan Hung Ming is
deemed to have the same interest in the Company by virtue of SFO.

Mr. Lau Chi Wah holds 100% of the issued share capital of Lau CW
Company Limited, which owns 53,146,830 shares out of the total number
of issued shares of the Company. Therefore, Mr. Lau Chi Wah is deemed to
have the same interest in the Company by virtue of SFO.

On 14 March 2019, Lau CW Company Limited pledged 53,146,830 Shares it
held in the Company to Banco Well Link, S.A..

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company has or is deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as at 31 March 2019.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, so far as the Directors were aware, the following
persons/entity (not being the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had, or were deemed to have interests or short positions in
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which were required to be notified to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO:

FERRRRG REBERD B ER KR
B

RZFB-NF=ZA=+—B REFHA KT
AL/ BB (LFEEFHARRAETRITHRAR)R
A Ak AT AT AR B OE B # B 10 S AR R A 0 o
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2R3D HABAARBRERARARIEES K&
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NP
R

Number of
ordinary Approximate
shares held percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest (note 1) shareholding
58
ZERHA IR REBA
MRER i E By umtE (&#1) Bolk
Chan HM Company Limited Beneficial owner 478,321,470 (L) 67.39%
Chan HM Company Limited BEmEE A
Lau CW Company Limited Beneficial owner 53,146,830 (L) 7.49%
Lau CW Company Limited E=mEA A
Ms. Cheung Shuk Fong Family (note 2) 53,146,830 (L) 7.49%
SRR X+ Kk (it2)
Banco Well Link, S.A. Security interest (note 3) 53,146,830 (L) 7.49%
UIBIRITIRGND BR A A RERER (i73)
Note: it

1. The Letter “L" denotes the person’s/entity’s long position in the shares of
the Company or the relevant Group member.

2. Ms. Cheung Shuk Fong, the spouse of Mr. Lau Chi Wah, is deemed to be
interested in Mr. Lau’s interest in our Company by virtue of the SFO.

3. On 14 March 2019, Lau CW Company Limited pledged 53,146,830 Shares it
held in the Company to Banco Well Link, S.A..
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Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the total number of issued
shares of the Company as at 31 March 2019 which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions
of Directors and Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations” above, at
no time during FY 2018/19 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or any holding company or any subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company, a party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any
right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or
any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Save for their respective interests in the Group, none of the Directors
was interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete
with the businesses of the Group for FY 2018/19.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 21 January 2019, Able Business Development Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and as vendor) accepted the
tender from Ms. Cheung Shuk Fong (“Ms. Cheung”, as purchaser) for
the sale of a residential unit of Cristallo Project (the “Disposal”) at the
consideration of HK$148,000,000.

Ms. Cheung, by virtue of being the spouse of Mr. Lau Chi Wah who is
an executive Director, is an associate of a connected person of the
Company under Rule 14A.12 of the Listing Rules. Hence the Disposal
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Since one of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than the profits ratio) in respect of the Disposal exceeded 5%,
the Disposal was subject to reporting, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.
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The Disposal was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 1 March 2019
and was completed on 22 March 2019. Details of the Disposal were set
out in the circular of the Company dated 14 February 2019.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or any entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or any of its
fellow subsidiaries was a party during or at the end the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

None of the Company or any of its subsidiaries had entered into any
contract of significance or contract of significance for provision of
services with the Company's controlling shareholders (“Controlling
Shareholders”) or its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
Details of the Directors’ remuneration during the year are set out in note
11 to the financial statements.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

A deed of non-competition in respect of the Controlling Shareholders
was entered into on 23 July 2013 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”).
The Controlling Shareholders had confirmed to the Company of their
compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition provided to the Company
during the year.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed
that the Controlling Shareholders of the Company had complied with
the Deed of Non-Competition which has been enforced by the Company
in accordance with its terms, and that there was no new opportunity
(as defined in the Prospectus headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders — Non-compete Undertakings”) referred by the Controlling
Shareholders to the Company as provided under the Deed of Non-
Competition.
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PENSION SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at rates specified in the rules. During FY 2018/19, the Group
contributed approximately HK$2.92 million to the aforesaid scheme.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 23
July 2013 (the “Adoption Date”). The purpose of the Scheme is to attract
and retain the best quality personnel, to provide additional incentives to
them to promote the long term success of the Group. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the Board may, at its own discretion, grant options to any full-
time or part-time employee, executives, officers, directors (including
executive, non-executive, and independent non-executive Directors),
consultants, advisors, suppliers, customers, agents and other persons
whom the Board determines have or will have contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue upon the Listing Date, being 40,000,000 Shares (the
“Scheme Limit"). Subject to Shareholders” approval in general meeting,
the Board may (i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of the approval by the Shareholders in general
meeting, and/or (i) grant options beyond the Scheme Limit to eligible
participants specifically identified by the Board.

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No options
shall be granted under any schemes of the Company (including the
Scheme) if this will result in the limit being exceeded.

24

BIKEEE
REBABFRAEESCEREERERIIERES
Bl ([RTESTE]) - BB EMNEERLRSE
ENEESHBE ATTAEHNESEIE R
BaRESHEEE BEREREREEEBR TS
/9 Lb 2R A &1 81 1 5K o AN B 782018/194F [ A
st B 3R 402928 B ot -

BB IR REST 8

RNARR-ZE—=FtA-+=8 ([HFHBEH])
F— BB B ([RTE81)) 3T 82 BHER
WalREBEEEMAE WA EREREIING
B DR R B RIREREBRRKY - RIEFT S
2N RSREERE T EA 2 FRBRES
THAB HEAE EF (BERIT ERTR
BYIEWITES) HAER BEAHER T
F-REKHEMEZSRAEEAEBEMER K
ARBERAOAL

RIFET 8 R AR BMEAT AL BB AR AT 81 7] TR
MEBBRERTS R A _HZRZ TGRS LT A
B 1T # 81#910% - B140,000,0008% A 15 (&5
IR - MEBRRNBERAS LI - EFF
AI(NBER BRI IR BB L R R K& E A R At
B RO ETRNEI10% &SR BB SR
ENBRETESSREENARER2EE-

RIBF I LA R RUERE R IR LA
W RTTEER FT B RITIERE B BT R T A] T 3%
TR A RMEMKEASBETEE#HT
B £ #930% © fif It 28 16 BB AR BB L RZ PR AR

AINBREBEARREAEM S (2SR h
R HE -

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

=R HE ()

The total number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company to each eligible participant in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options is
subject to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting with such eligible
participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine
which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant subject to the
provisions of early termination thereof. The Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing from the Adoption Date.

A consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
an option. Pursuant to the Scheme, the participants may subscribe
for the shares of the Company on exercise of an option at the price
determined by the Board provided that it shall be at least the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Share.

No options had been granted, exercised or cancelled under the Scheme
since the Adoption Date up to the date of this report.
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SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company adopted a share award plan (the “Share Award Plan” or
the “SAP") on the Adoption Date. Subject to and in accordance with the
rules of the SAP the Board may make an award of shares to certain
classes of eligible participants as specified in the SAPR, as determined
by the Board from time to time on the basis of the Board's opinion as
to the proposed awardee’s contribution and/or future contribution to
the development and growth of the Group. The SAP shall be subject
to the administration of the Board, or such committee or such sub-
committee or person(s) delegated with the power and authority by
the Board to administer the SAP The shares and other trust fund for
the implementation of the Share Award Plan shall be administered
by a trustee or trustees (the “Share Award Plan trustee”, or the “SAP
trustee”) to be appointed by the Company. Under the SAP, the Board
shall determine the eligibility of the eligible participants and the number
of shares to be awarded (the “Awarded Shares”) and notify the SAP
trustee of the making of awards. The SAP trustee shall then set aside
the appropriate number of the Awarded Shares pending the transfer
and vest to the relevant participants out of a pool of shares which shall
comprise of, among others, shares either (1) (i) transferred to it from any
person (other than the Group) by way of gift; or (i) purchased by the SAP
trustee out of the funds received by the SAP trustee by way of gift or
for nominal consideration; (2) subscribed for or purchased by the Share
Award Plan trustee out of the funds allocated by the Board out of the
Group’s resources (“Group’s Contribution”), subject to the terms and
conditions of the rules of the SAP; (3) purchased by the SAP trustee by
utilising any surplus gift contribution, or the net proceeds of the sale of
the relevant nil-paid rights, options or warrants allocated to it in respect
of the Awarded Shares; (4) which remain unvested and revert to the SAP
trustee in accordance with the rules of the SAP
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The SAP trustee may purchase shares on the Stock Exchange at the
prevailing market prices or off the market. In respect of off-market
transactions, purchases shall not be made with any connected person,
nor shall the purchase price be higher than the lower of (1) the closing
market price on the date of such purchase, and (2) the average closing
market price for the five preceding trading days on which Shares of the
Company were traded on the Stock Exchange. At the beginning of each
financial year of the Group, the Board shall determine the maximum
amount of the Group’s Contribution to be allocated to the SAP trustee
(or via a special purpose vehicle which may be established by the SAP
trustee subject to the provisions of the trust deed to be executed by the
Company as settlor and the SAP trustee as trustee, shortly as “Share
Award Plan SPV") during such financial year, provided that the maximum
numbers of Shares which may be awarded for each financial year under
the SAP shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
at the beginning of such financial year. The Share Award Plan trustee
may also subscribe for new Shares at par or at such other subscription
price as instructed by the Board out of the Group's Contribution if
the Board considers it appropriate to do so. Prior approval from the
Shareholders is not required for the Directors to allot and issue new
Shares under the SAP to the SAP trustee, provided that the Directors
have sufficient unissued shares within the general mandate on hand
subject to certain limitations under the SAP. The Company shall comply
with the relevant listing rules when granting the Awarded Shares. the
legal and beneficial ownership of the relevant awarded Shares shall
be vested in the relevant selected participant within 10 business days
after the latest of (1) the date specified in the notice of the award given
by the Board to the SAP trustee; and (2) where applicable, the date on
which the condition(s) or performance target(s) (if any) to be attained
by such selected participant as specified in the related notice of award
have been attained and notified to the Share Award Plan trustee by the
Board in writing. Neither the SAP trustee nor Share Award Plan SPV (if so
established and subsisting) shall exercise the voting rights in respect of
the Shares held under trust. The Share Award Plan will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date.

No Shares had been awarded under the Share Award Plan since the
Adoption Date up to the date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s securities during FY 2018/19.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code") as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the
FY 2018/19. Details are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 36 to 48.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public float under the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for FY 2018/19 have been audited
by BDO Limited. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Hung Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 June 2019

28

EER

EZRS ARBN2018/M9FERNEETLEHR
QM+ A RE S ST RIFT ST A ST AR -
BAFBEHNE6EBEN [BRERRE] Ao

BER KRR
ARBETAEBEDERRIBEARREBEM
AR SR RB AR

ZEARERE
RARERS REFATMEANERRES
A R A RIS RN RIEAR

R E

B Em

2018/ 19F EMRAMBHRREABTELERRS
AR EBAARARERZ RABRTHREE
FRELBREENZETBLGRERGAME
BRAERRARA/ARBZEAMARAESR

RREFE

T
BRF.EA

B —FE—NFENAKAE

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

3w AR B i

Details of the biographies of Directors and senior management as of 31
March 2019 are listed as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Hung Ming, aged 65, is our chairman and executive Director.
He is also our Controlling Shareholder and a director of all subsidiaries
of our Group. Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Chan is interested in
478,321,470 Shares, representing 67.39% of the number of the issued
shares of the Company, as at the date of this annual report.

Mr. Chan is a co-founder of our Group and has participated in the
management of our Group since 1995. He is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall strategic development and direction of the
business development of our Group. He has accumulated over 45 years'
experience in construction and property development field and 11
years' experience data centre premises leasing business.

Mr. Chan holds a Higher Certificate in Building Technology from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan is not connected with any existing
Directors, senior management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling
Shareholders.

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, aged 54, is our executive Director and chief
executive officer. He is also a director of all subsidiaries of our Group.
Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Lau is interested in 53,146,830
Shares, representing 7.49% of the number of the issued shares of the
Company, as at the date of this annual report.

Mr. Lau is a co-founder of our Group and has participated in the
management of our Group since 1995. He is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall strategic planning of our Group and overseeing
the business development, administrative and compliance matters
of our Group. He had over 30 years of audit, accounting and finance
experience.

Mr. Lau holds an Honour Diploma in Accountancy from the Lingnan
College (now known as the Lingnan University) and Master's Degree
in Professional Accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He
is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA").
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Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau is not connected with any existing
Directors, senior management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling
Shareholders.

Mr. Yuen Ying Wai, aged 56, is our executive Director. He also holds
directorship in most of the subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Yuen joined our
Group in 2001 and has participated in the management of our Group
since 2007.

Mr. Yuen is responsible for the overall management of the construction
and data centre premises leasing business. He has over 35 years'
experience in quantity surveying and construction project management
and 11 years’ experience in the construction of high tier data centre and
the related leasing matters.

Mr. Yuen holds a Certificate in Civil Engineering Studies from the
Hong Kong Vocational Training Council, a National Certificate in Civil
Engineering Studies from Business & Technician Education Council, a
Higher Certificate in Civil Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University), and a Diploma in
Surveying from the College of Estate Management in United Kingdom.
He is a member of both the Society of Surveying Technician and the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Yuen did not have any interests
or underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yuen is not connected with any existing
Directors, senior management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling
Shareholders.

Mr. Kwan Wing Wo, aged 51, is our executive Director and chief
financial officer. He also holds directorship in certain subsidiaries of our
Group. Mr. Kwan joined the Group in 2008 and has participated in the
management of the Group since then.

Mr. Kwan is responsible for the corporate finance, accounting, taxation,
investment and administrative matters of our Group. He has over 28
years' experience in auditing, accounting and finance field. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Kwan held a management position in a listed
company in Hong Kong for 12 years and was mainly responsible for
its finance, financial reporting obligations, accounting, taxation and
administrative matters.
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Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor's degree in Accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of United Kingdom and a member of the HKICPA.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Kwan did not have any interests
or underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Kwan is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.

INDPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tsui Ka Wah, aged 66, is our independent non-executive Director
since 23 July 2013. He is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and a member of each of the
audit committee (“Audit Committee”) and the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) of the Company.

Mr. Tsui has 31 years of banking experience with United States and local
banks, and has held various management positions in corporate, retail
and private banking. Currently he holds the position of chief executive
officer of SME Credit Company Limited. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Oriental Explorer Holdings Limited (stock
code: 430), Multifield International Holdings Limited (stock code: 898)
and Southeast Asia Properties & Finance Limited (stock code: 252)
respectively, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Tsui holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree and a Master's Degree of
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Tsui did not have any interests or
underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

Mr. Tsui is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.

Mr. Kan Yau Wo, aged 66, is our independent non-executive
Director since 23 July 2013. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company.
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Mr. Kan has been working with Fujitsu’s group of companies for over 30
years and was appointed as the president in Fujitsu Hong Kong Ltd. in
2007 and then the chief executive officer of Fujitsu’s South China and
Hong Kong Region. Mr. Kan retired from his position in Fujitsu’s group of
companies in 2011.

Mr. Kan graduated from University of Hull in United Kingdom with
Bachelor of Science (First Class Honour) in Computer Studies and
Mathematics.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Kan did not have any interests or
underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

Mr. Kan is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.

Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill, aged 58, is our independent non-executive
Director since 23 July 2013. He is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee, and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Mok has 31 years' experience in accounting, finance and banking
in Hong Kong and Mainland China with specific expertise in managing
financial and accounting operations, fund raising, investor relations and
executing corporate strategy. Currently he is the chief financial officer
and company secretary of China Education Group Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
0839). He has also been serving as an independent non-executive
director of PF Group Holdings Limited, which was listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8221), since December 2016.

Mr. Mok holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Business Administration from
the University of Washington in the United States and a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the Seattle University in the United States.
He is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the HKICPA respectively.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Mok did not have any interests
or underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Mok is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.
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Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny, aged 75, is our independent non-
executive Director since 23 July 2013. He is also a member of each of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

With over 20 years’ experience in the field of architecture, Mr. Lee
worked in several architect firms including as a director from 1995 to
2009. From 2009, Mr. Lee has been working for an architecture company
as a project director.

Mr. Lee graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Architecture. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Architects and a registered architect with Architects Registration Board
in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is also an authorised person within the List of
Architects maintained by the Buildings Department.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Lee did not have any interests or
underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

Mr. Lee is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Au-Yeung Yiu Wai, aged 62, joined our group in 1997 and is a
project director of our construction business responsible for supervising
our project managers and overseeing the construction matters. He is
also a director of Grand Tech Construction Company Limited. Mr. Au-
Yeung possesses over 38 years' experience in the construction industry.

Mr. Au-Yeung holds a Higher Certificate in Civil Engineering from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University), Bachelor of Science in Building from Brighton Polytechnic
(now known as University of Brighton) and a Diploma in Construction
Management from the Hong Kong Construction Industry Training
Authority. Mr. Au-Yeung is a member of both the Chartered Institute of
Building and the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers.

Mr. Ng Kwok Fong, aged 48, joined our group in 1998 and is the
technical director of our construction business in respect of our building
design and construction projects and the Group's risk officer (“Group
Risk Officer”). He is also a director of Grand Tech Construction Company
Limited.
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Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Engineering in Civil Engineering from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University), a Bachelor of Laws from the University of London and a
Master of Laws Degree from the City University of Hong Kong. With
dual membership in the Institution of Structural Engineers in the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Mr. Ng is
a chartered engineer of the United Kingdom as well as a registered
professional engineer of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Sik Nin, aged 54, joined our group in 2013 and is the
general manager of our data centre leasing business responsible for
such business development and operation. Mr. Chan possesses over
than 15 years' experience in the data centre industry and managed
to succeed major deals in providing high-tier data centre services for
meeting the stringent requirements from customers. Prior to joining our
Group, he was the Vice President of Sales & Business Development, and
then re-designated as the Vice President of Corporate Development
of iAdvantage Limited, a subsidiary of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd. (stock
code: 1686) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chan holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Canberra, a Diploma in Marketing & International Business
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a Professional Diploma
in Business Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Ms. Ngan King Fung, aged 52, joined our group in December 2016 and
is the director of sales & marketing responsible for all aspects of sales
and marketing of our properties portfolio in the Hong Kong property
market. Ms. Ngan has over 27 years’ extensive experience in sales and
marketing field of the property industry. Prior to joining our group, she
worked for various listed developer companies in Hong Kong and was
responsible for their development’s sales and marketing matters.

Ms. Ngan obtained a Master of Business Administration from University
of Wales.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Wai Chuen, aged 53, is the company secretary of the
Company since July 2013. Mr. Leung has over 28 years' experience in
auditing, accounting, financial management and company secretarial
matters. Prior to joining our Group, he worked for and held senior
positions in various listed companies in Hong Kong and was responsible
for their finance, accounting and company secretarial functions.
Currently he is an independent non-executive director of E Lighting
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8222), a company listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange. He also serves as a non-executive director of
MOS House Group Limited (stock code: 1653), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Leung is a member of the HKICPA, a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom and an associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators respectively. He holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong,
a Master's Degree in Business Administration jointly awarded by the
University of Wales and the University of Manchester and a Master’s
Degree in Business (Logistics Management) from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology (now known as RMIT University).

Save as disclosed, each of the senior management and the company
secretary of our Company has not been a director of any other publicly
listed company during the three years preceding the date of this annual
report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company acknowledges the importance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures, and regards a pre-eminent
board of directors, sound internal controls and accountability to
all Shareholders as the core elements of its corporate governance
principles. The Company endeavours to ensure that its businesses are
conducted in accordance with rules and regulations, and applicable
codes and standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code as contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules throughout FY 2018/19.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Responsibilities of the Board
The Board is primarily responsible for management of the Group,
including the responsibilities of formulating business strategies,
directing and monitoring the Group’s development. Apart from its
statutory responsibilities, the Board is also required to approve
the Group's strategic development plan and major investments;
review the Group's financial performance; identify principal risks
of the Group's business and ensure adequate systems of risk
management and internal control. The Board also delegates
certain responsibilities to various board committees which have
been established by the Board to deal with different aspects of the
Company's affairs.

The day-to-day operations and administration are delegated to the

management of the Group under the leadership of the executive
Directors.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight members, as detailed below:
Executive Directors Independent
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Ka Wah

Mr. Kan Yau Wo

Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill

Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny

Mr. Chan Hung Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Chi Wah

Mr. Yuen Ying Wai

Mr. Kwan Wing Wo

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 29 to
33 of this annual report. There is no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship among members of the Board.
A list of Directors and their roles and functions has been published
on the Company’s website.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with the aim
of achieving diversity on the Company’s Board. The Company
recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board, and sees
diversity of perspectives at the Board level as essential in
achieving a sustainable and balanced development. In designing
the Board’'s composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, industry experience and expertise. All Board
appointments are based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against a variety of criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Currently, the Board comprises Directors with diverse backgrounds
and/or extensive expertise in corporate management, with over
50% of the Directors possessing professional qualifications.
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All executive Directors have served the Group for over five years
and all independent non-executive Directors were appointed with
effect from the Listing Date. The term of office of all independent
non-executive Directors has been fixed for a specific term of
not more than three years. The Board is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting
in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules
and met the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules of at
least one-third of the members of the Board being independent
non-executive Directors. In addition, Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill, one
of the independent non-executive Directors, has the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

Board and Board Committee Meetings
The Board's attendance in the general meetings, board meetings
and board committee meetings during FY 2018/19 are as follows:

ERTEFERNAEERBEBEBLF M2
BEUIFNTEEN LMBARERZE B
VHERTEFEEERTFH BTZR=
FREFERAA EFTERERT ES
BEREARRRRBFAS LERETE
=o

RAFER ETHARRE30ME RSHTE
LEHRAUEIIAGEHRESTEEL =02
—HERBIUIFFATESMHRE - MAHH
—RBIUFRTEST RERRLE FEL
MARAEII0QGENRE ABEEIER
ERRGFTHMBERER-

EXENESZEEER
EFEEN2018/19FREEFEZRRAE EF

CERNEFZREEERNOT:

Meetings Attended/Held
ERHERYHY
Annual Extraordinary
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
Exg EREES FHzES REZE8 RRBEFAE RRBIXE
Executive Directors H17Es

Mr. Chan Hung Ming RILBEAE 5/5 - - - 1 111
Mr. Lau Chi Wah BEELE 5/5 - - - 11 Absent’
e
Mr. Yuen Ying Wai RRBEE 5/5 - - - 11 11
Mr. Kwan Wing Wo BAmEE 5/5 - - - 1" 1n

Independent Non-Executive BuE#HTEZ

Directors

Mr. Tsui Ka Wah BRRELE 5/5 2/2 11 11 11 11
Mr. Kan Yau Wo BRMEE 5/5 2/2 11 11 11 11
Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill RRgEL 5/5 2/2 11 11 11 11
Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny FRBEE 5/5 2/2 11 11 11 11

" To avoid conflict of interest, Mr. Lau Chi Wah was absent at the
extraordinary general meeting that he was required to abstain from
voting.
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Conflict of Interest

If a Director has a potential conflict of interest in a matter being
considered in the board meeting, he will abstain from voting.
Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest
will be present at meetings dealing with such conflict of interest
iSSues.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has appropriate and sufficient insurance coverage
relating to directors’ and officers’ liability to indemnify the
Directors and senior management against any potential liabilities
arising from the Company’s business activities for which such
Directors and senior management may be held liable.

Directors’ Time Commitments and Trainings

The Company has received confirmation from each Director that
he had sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company
for the year. The Directors have disclosed to the Company the
number and nature of offices they held in Hong Kong or overseas
listed public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments, with the identity of the public companies and
organisations and an indication of the time involved. They are
reminded to notify the Company in a timely manner of any
changes of such information. All Directors are encouraged to
attend the Board meeting and board committee meeting in
person. For the Directors and committee members who are
unable to attend the meeting, participation through electronic
means is arranged and available.

All Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Hung Ming, Mr. Lau Chi Wah,
Mr. Yuen Ying Wai, Mr. Kwan Wing Wo, Mr. Tsui Ka Wah, Mr. Kan
Yau Wo, Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill and Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny,
had participated in continuous professional development with
respect to directors duties, relevant programmes and seminars,
in compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code. A record
of the Directors’ participation in such programmes is kept by
the Company. Reading materials on the latest developments or
updates in connection to the Group's businesses, accounting,
regulatory and corporate governance aspects were provided
to the Directors. They also received monthly financial highlights
provided by the management.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The chairman and the chief executive officer are currently two separate
positions held by Mr. Chan Hung Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah respectively
with clear distinction in responsibilities.

Mr. Chan Hung Ming, being the chairman, is responsible for the
management and leadership of the Board to formulate overall strategies
and business development directions for the Group, to ensure that
adequate, complete and reliable information is provided to all Directors
in a timely manner, and to ensure that the issues raised at the Board
meetings are explained appropriately.

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, being the chief executive officer, is responsible for
the daily operations of the Group and the implementation of business
policies, objectives and plans as formulated and adopted by the Board,
and is accountable to the Board for the overall operation of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties. Given below are the main corporate governance duties of the
Board:

(i) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance,

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

(i)~ to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Group
and the Directors; and

(V)  to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Board had reviewed the corporate governance matters of the

Company for FY 2018/19. The Company had complied with the
principles and applicable code provisions of the CG Code.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs and discharging its functions.
Sufficient resources are provided to enable the Board committees to
undertake their specific role.

1.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23 July
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance to Rule 3.25
of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the website of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee consists of all four
independent non-executive Directors. The current members are
Mr. Tsui Ka Wah (chairperson), Mr. Kan Yau Wo, Mr. Mok Kwai Puli
Bill and Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include,
among others, (i) making recommendation to the Board on
the policy and structure for Directors and senior management;
(i) reviewing and approving the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goal and
objective; (iii) making recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management and remuneration of non-executive Directors;
and (iv) ensuring none of the Directors determine their own
remuneration.

During FY 2018/19, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to review the remuneration policy and structure
of the Directors and senior management, review and make
recommendations to the Board on the annual emoluments of the
Directors and other related matters.

Details of remuneration of Directors and senior management
are set out in note 11 and 12(b) to the financial statements
respectively.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 July 2013
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
posted on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange
on 2 January 2019. The Audit Committee consists of all four
independent non-executive Directors. The current members are
Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill (chairperson), Mr. Tsui Ka Wah, Mr. Kan Yau
Wo and Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny. Mr. Mok holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21
of the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among others,
() making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; (i) reviewing
the financial statements, risk management and internal control
systems; and (iii) overseeing the financial reporting and the
effectiveness of the internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during FY 2018/19.
The committee members also met in separate session with the
external auditor without the presence of executive Directors.

The work of the Audit Committee during the year included:

(i) reviewed the audited financial statements and annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 March 2018;

(i)  reviewed the unaudited financial statements and interim
results announcement for the six months ended 30
September 2018; and

(il reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal controls system for FY 2018/19
based on the assessments made by the Group Risk Officer
and the review report undertaken by the internal auditor of
the Group (the “Internal Auditor”).

The Group's audited financial statements and annual results
announcement for FY 2018/19 were reviewed by the Audit
Committee on 6 June 2019.
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3. Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23 July
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Nomination Committee consists of all four independent non-
executive Directors. The current members are Mr. Kan Yau Wo
(chairperson), Mr. Tsui Ka Wah, Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill and Mr. Lee
Chung Yiu Johnny.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on regular
basis; to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members; to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. In assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate for directorship, the Board
will take into account the candidate’s qualification (including
professional qualifications, skill and knowledge), experience in
relation to the Group's businesses and potential contribution that
can bring to the Company.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during FY 2018/19
to review the size, composition and diversity of the Board by
taking into account the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business development of
the Group and for effective leadership.

DIRECTORS’' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in the Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiries to all Directors by
the Company, all Directors confirmed their compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout FY 2018/19.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare
the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Group's
financial position and of its financial performance and cash flow
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the
Companies Ordinance (Cap 622) and the applicable disclosures
provisions of the Listing Rules. The management provides information
and explanation to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other decisions by the Board.
Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently, and judgements and estimates made by the management
for financial reporting purpose are prudent and reasonable.
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The responsibilities of the external auditor for the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 49 to 56 of this annual report.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services provided
by the Company’s external auditor to the Group during FY 2018/19 are
approximately HK$962,000 (2018: HK$895,000) and HK$140,000 (2018:
HK$117,000) respectively. The non-audit services mainly include the
Group's tax reporting services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective system of internal controls and risk management within
the Group, and reviewing its operational adequacy and effectiveness
through the Audit Committee.

The Board has identified the top risks of the Group and determined how
much risk the Board is willing to take to achieve the Group's strategic
objectives. In addition, the Group established a risk management system
based on the “Three Lines of Defence” model. Each business unit is
required to identify and manage risks on a day-to-day basis as the first
line of defence. The Group Risk Officer, acting as the second line of
defence, provides oversight of the risk management activities of the first
line of defence. The Internal Auditor, as the third line of defence, provides
independent and objective assurance on the overall effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management system.

Each business unit, as risk owners, identifies, evaluates, and monitors its
own risks, and reports such risk assessment to the Group Risk Officer on
a monthly basis. The Group Risk Officer consolidates the results of the
risk assessments and presents to the Board the principal risks facing the
Group and the risk changes at each regularly scheduled meeting.

The Internal Auditor conducted reviews on systems of risk management
and internal controls of the Group over financial, operational and
compliance control according to the internal audit plan endorsed by
the Audit Committee. During the process of review, the Internal Auditor
identified internal control deficiencies and weakness, and proposed
recommendations for improvements and remedial actions with
management. The results of internal control review and management’s
remedial actions have also been reported to the Audit Committee at
each scheduled meeting.
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The Audit Committee had reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal controls system based
on the assessments made by the Group Risk Officer and the review
reports undertaken by the Internal Auditor. During the review, the Audit
Committee also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programs and budgets.

The Board, through the review by the Audit Committee, considers that
the Group’s internal control and risk management system is effective
and adequate. No significant areas of concern that may affect the
financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group have been identified. The systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or 10ss.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has adopted and implemented its own disclosure policy
aiming to provide a general guide to Directors and management of the
Company in handling of confidential information and/or monitoring of
information disclosure pursuant to applicable laws and regulations in
compliance with the Listing Rules and SFO.

The disclosure policy provides the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information by publication
of the announcement to the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange on a timely basis to enable the public, namely Shareholders,
institutional investors, potential investors and other stakeholders of the
Company to access the latest information of the Group, unless such
information fall within the safe harbours with the SFO.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make informed investment decisions.
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The general meetings of the Company are expected to provide a forum
for communication between the Board and Shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the board committees and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees are available
to answer questions at shareholder meetings. The Company’s external
auditor is also invited to attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and
content of the Independent Auditor’s Report.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.grandming.com.hk, where information and updates on the
Group's business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for
public access.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication policy
which is posted on the Company’'s website and will review it on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

1. Convening Extraordinary General Meetings (“EGM")
The following procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM of
the Company are prepared in accordance with the Articles:

()  One or more Shareholders (“Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings, shall have the right, by written
notice, to require an EGM to be called by the directors for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

(i) Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company by post to the
Company's headquarter in Hong Kong at 22/F, Railway Plaza,
39 Chatham Road South, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
or by email to info@grandming.com.hk.

(i)  The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

(iv) If the Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM within
21 days of such deposit, the Requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

(i)

Proposal for election of a person other than a Director as a
Director:

A shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring
Director (“Candidate”) for election as a Director at a
general meeting by lodging the following documents at
the headquarter of the Company in Hong Kong or the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong (and with effect
from 11 July 2019 onwards, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong):

(@ a written notice (“Proposal Notice”) of the intention to
propose the Candidate for election as a Director, which
must (i) state the information of the Candidate as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, which is
available on the Stock Exchange's website (www.hkex.
com.hk) and (ii) must be signed by Shareholder; and

(b) a written notice (“Consent Notice”) by the Candidate,
which must (i) indicate his/her willingness to be
elected as a Director and consent to the publication
of his/her personal information as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (ii) must be signed by
the Candidate.

The Proposal Notice and the Consent Notice shall be lodged
for a period of at least 7 clear days commencing no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting and ending no later than 7 clear days before the
date of such general meeting.

Other Proposals:

If a Shareholder wishes to make other proposals (the
“Proposal(s)”) at a general meeting, he/she may lodge
a written request, duly signed, at the head office of the
Company in Hong Kong.
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The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 20 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an annual general meeting of the
Company.

(2)  Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution in an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

(3) Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of an ordinary resolution in
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

3. Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries in writing with their
detailed contact information to the company secretary of the
Company or the Board either by:

()  Post to the Company’s headquarter in Hong Kong at 22/F,
Railway Plaza, 39 Chatham Road South, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong; or

(i Email to info@grandming.com.hk

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During FY 2018/19, the Company did not amend its constitutional
documents.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary supports the chairman, the Board and the board
committees by ensuring good information flow and Board policy and
procedures are followed. The company secretary is an employee of the
Company and is appointed by the Board. The company secretary reports
to the chairman and chief executive officer. All directors may call upon
him for advice and assistance at any time in respect of his duties. The
company secretary obtained a practitioner's endorsement of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in compliance with the Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of the company secretary
are shown on page 35 of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
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www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Grand Ming Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Grand
Ming Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 171, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

3 3 b BB ¥R (A

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. The key audit matter identified in our audit is
valuation of investment properties and recognition on contract revenue
and costs.

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties consist of two high-tier data centres, namely
iTech Tower 1 and iTech Tower 2 (the “Data Centres”). As disclosed in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the carrying value of
the Group's investment properties amounted to HK$3,595,000,000 as at
31 March 2019 representing 51.0% of the Group's total assets. During
the year ended 31 March 2019, an increase in fair values of investment
properties were HK$19,419,000, representing 13.0% of the Group's profit
for the year.

As disclosed in note 15(a) to the financial statements, an independent
firm of qualified professional valuers (the “Valuers”) was engaged to
perform the valuation and the discounted cash flow method of the
income approach was used to determine the fair value of the Data
Centres. Details of the valuation approach are disclosed in the note
15(a) to the financial statement. This method involves the making of
assumptions, which involve judgements, including estimated market
rents, stabilised occupancy rates, terminal capitalisation rates as well as
discount rates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

our responses:

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of valuation
of investment properties included:

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuers;

- Performing analysis on the reasonableness of the prospective
cash flows input to evaluate the results on the valuation;

- Using auditor’s expert to assist in assessing the valuation
methodology and key assumptions used by the Valuers;

- Assessing the appropriateness and consistency of the use of the
valuation methodology with relevant accounting requirements and
industry norms; and

- Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions applied in
the valuation, in particular capitalisation rates, by comparing
them with historical rates and available market data, taking into
consideration comparability with the assistance of our internal
valuation specialists.

Recognition on contract revenue and costs

As disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements, revenue derived from
building construction for the year ended 31 March 2019 amounted to
HK$264,918,000, representing 43.2% of the Group's revenue.

Contract revenue is recognised over time on the basis of direct
measurements of the value to the customers of the services transferred
relative to the remaining services promised under the contract to the
performance completed to date certified by independent surveyors.
Contract costs are recognised as an expense by reference to the
percentage of completion at the end of the reporting period of the
contract. Details of the Group’s accounting policy is disclosed in note
4 1o the financial statements. This recognition method involves the
making of assumptions, which involve judgements, including estimated
percentage of work performed and the reasonableness and accuracy of
forecasted costs to complete.

BARELER (&)
REMENLE(E)

FEHEfE -
ESRTERENEBEZREENERFRE:

—  AHAEBERNER BENMEEINL:

— HEHRERERANSEMLETON A
AHEmESR:

—  RAREED 2 SR AR BT G ER R
AHE AN EEZRR

—  FHEERGEDEEBEET ERMITERR
HEVBEEEM BT R

— FAEARGEEZIERRNAENE LR
HREARNEL R - @B EE L L RMAI AH
SHBETLE AESAMEEERNG
BT EBEA -

B #I U Z5 F R AN Y HE R

BT HBREMFTAIEE BHE - —AF
AT+ HLEGEEREEFEENRTE A
264,918,000 7T + 1l 4~ 5= B Y 2543.2% ©

BHOWERB TR RN G OB R R - STk
BO2RABLAEMEENEETIECKE-
BRRARBREH RO T I A DL RIAFTTHK
BHNFAXHERX L AEEN ST HRRABH
R MR ML - WWHERTDES MR ERR - H
ZALEL H B B4 TR EE ST A 2t oA R FRE
FTLIRXEEE M MEREME-

51

4 4 I B A PR A W] 2018/19 4 E Hi



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recognition on contract revenue and costs (continued)

our responses:

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of revenue
recognition on building construction and related costs included:

- Examining the terms and conditions of all key contracts and
variation orders, such as contract sum, construction period,
performance obligations of the Group, payment schedule,
retention etc;

- Validating the stage of completion adopted by management to the
position set out in the certificate issued by independent surveyors,
including the certified contract work and variation orders;

- Evaluating the accuracy and reasonableness of total budgeted
costs, by benchmarking against the historical costs and profit
margins of completed projects; assessing the ratio of cost
incurred to budgeted costs with reference to stage of completion,
and interviewing the project managers for assessing the
reasonableness of the cost estimations; and

- Testing the controls of the Group over its process to record
contract revenue and costs include review and approval
procedures on the preparation of project certificates, progress
reports and payments.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises Corporate Information, Financial Highlights,
Five-Year Financial Summary, Chairman’s Statement, Management
Discussion and Analysis, Report of the Directors, Biographies of the
Directors and Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report (but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which is
expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
(continuea)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the Environmental, Social and Governance Report, if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to the directors, and take appropriate action
considering our legal rights and obligations.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANICAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

= identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

3 3 b BB ¥R (A

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Che Bun
Practising Certificate Number P05804

Hong Kong, 6 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

o R A R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-T-NF=A=1+—81FE CABTIR)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes $’000 $°000
k23 Fr Fr
Revenue g /() 613,410 1,423,933
Direct costs BEKAE (346,962) (1,154,665)
Gross profit EF 266,448 269,268
Other income and gain/(loss) Hipg A Rz, (E518) 7(e) 4,487 3,759
Selling expenses HERX (26,676) 9,217)
General and administrative expenses — M EITBAX (33,093) (29,346)
Increase in fair value of REWEZ
investment properties NEEHEN 15 19,419 495
Profit from operations mEHEF 230,585 234,959
Finance costs B 75 B AR 8@) (53,471) (29,564)
Profit before taxation RR B AR R 8 177,114 205,395
Income tax expenses TSz H 9a) (28,114) (33,608)
Profit for the year FREF 149,000 171,787
HK cents HK cents
Bl BN
Earnings per share BREF
(reported earnings per share) (REFMTRAZERER)
- Basic and Diluted —ERREE 14(a) 21.0 24.2
Earnings per share SREF
(underlying earnings per share) (ERE#HEF)
- Basic and Diluted —EARREE 14(b) 18.3 241

Details of the dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the profit for the year are disclosed in note 13(a) to the financial

statements.

The notes on pages 64 to 171 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ao 7 4R i B 3L At 4 v U A 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HEZZ-NF=A=T—RHIFE (LUETIIT)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes $’000 $°000
k23 F T
Profit for the year gy 149,000 171,787
Other comprehensive income, Hfto 2w
net of tax HRBLE 10
Items that will not be reclassified to TEEFH T
Drofit or 10ss: Bz Ay E
Financial assets at fair value through %E’D\WEJ)\E@EEHK 5.2
other comprehensive income - TREE QA TEREEN
net movement in fair value reserve FEE) (830) -
ltems that may be reclassified HERJEEN 7R
subsequently to profit or 10ss: Ba I IE A -
Cash flow hedges — net movement REeEREHF-HHREED
in hedging reserve FEE (29,194) 12,565
Other comprehensive income FREMZEWRE  NKRBE
for the year, net of tax - (30,0299 12,565
Total comprehensive income FRE2EKNEEE
for the year 118,976 184,352

The notes on pages 64 to 171 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A B B IR D R

As at 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZZE-NF=A=+—H (UETIHIR)

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Notes $’000 $000
k23 FiT Fr
Non-current assets RBEE
Fixed assets EEEE
— Investment properties — B 15 3,595,000 3,627,300
— Property, plant and equipment e E RS E 15 864,368 253,858
4,459,368 3,881,158
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WEH B A IRS = 42,000
Deferred tax assets EEFIAE E o)) 12,436 6,425
Derivative financial instruments TESRIT A 24 288 15,821
Intangible assets EmREE 500 500
Financial assets at fair value BEATEFAEMEZEKEZ
through other comprehensive income TREE 16 12,710 —
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFEABRZ
through profit or loss TREE 16 7,220 =
Other financial assets Hih S gEE 16 = 13,540
4,492,522 3,959,444
Current assets REEE
Inventories of properties MEFE 19 2,080,437 1,994,145
Gross amount due from customers for ERERFEHIEERE
contract work 17 = 32,861
Contract assets BHEE 18 196,173 =
Trade and other receivables P MK BR R % L b B LR TR 20 116,918 360,608
Tax recoverable AT 4 [E1 7% 18 Ac)i) 2,000 92
Restricted and pledged deposits ZRE R B EBFR 21 104,478 66,144
Cash and bank balances R RIR1THER 21 58,269 312,063
2,558,275 2,765,913
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
AhE BN DL (4)

As at 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
AZZE—NF=A=1+—H (ABTHIR)

2019 2018
—ZE-NE —E-)\F
Notes $’000 $000
it Fr For
Current liabilities RBEE
Gross amount due to customers ERNREFAEHIEER
for contract work 17 = 1,187
Contract liabilities AHEE 18 25,555 =
Trade and other payables FERTER SR N H Ath FE - 5K IB 22 157,744 308,302
Bank loans RITER 23 782,538 403,703
Tax payable FET IR Achi) 11,791 16,565
. 977,628 729,757
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,580,647 2,036,156
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBARS 6,073,169 5,995,600
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Bank loans RITER 23 3,188,219 3,181,642
Deferred tax liabilities LT IEAE oc)il) 50,653 48,510
Derivative financial instruments PTEeRT A 24 19,775 344
3,258,647 | 3,230,496
NET ASSETS BEEFE 2,814,522 2,765,104
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAREE
Share capital f& s 26 7,098 7,098
Reserves s 2,807,424 2,758,006
TOTAL EQUITY 48 75 2,814,522 2,765,104
On behalf of the Board REEZS
Chan Hung Ming Lau Chi Wah
BR 7L BA g5
Director Director
o 2
The notes on pages 64 to 171 form part of these financial statements. FOARNNEFHMFBR AT EHRE—F 5 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZT-NF=RA=+—RHIFE CAVETIIR)

Fair
Share Share value Hedging Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
RA& RPEE ATEREE HHfE RE&EF e £
Notes $oo0 $0oo0 $000 S0 oo $ooo
F FIr F FIT FIr FT
At 1 April 2017 R-E-tENA-H 6,452 98 - 3 587 o 2,57287,8587 o %67347,9§37
Changes in equity for 2018: “E-\EREEEE:
Profit for the year EREF - - - = 171,787 171,787
QOther comprehensive income Hip2Eka 0t - - - 12,565 - 12,565
Total comprehensive income for the year FrR:EREER - - - NS nge 18432
Issuance of new shares under REARBITMET LR
the bonus issues 26,27 646 (646) - - - -
Interim dividend declared and BERRZNAFENTERS
paid in respect of the current year 13@) - - - - (28,391) (28,391)
Final dividend approved in respect of HEBRE—FENKRERE
the previous year 13() - - - - (25,810) (25,810)
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 RZE-NFZA=+-HEK
—Z-NFWF-H 7,098 98,639 - 12,923 2,646,444 2,765,104
Changes in equity for 2019: TE-NFREEEE:
Profit for the year FRER - - - - 149,000 149,000
Other comprehensive income Hip2 Ak 100) - - (830) (29,194) - (30,024)
Total comprehensive income for the year FhrEMEEE - - (8300 (29194) 149,000 118976
Interim dividend declared and BERRINAFENTERS
paid in respect of the current year 13(6) - - - - (28,391) (28,391)
Final dividend approved in respect of HEBR L —FERHRERE
the previous year 13) - - - - (41,167) (41,167)
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NF=A=1+-H 7,098 98,639 (830) (16,271) 2,725,886 2,814,522

The notes on pages 64 to 171 form part of these financial statements.

FOARNNEMEM EBR AR BHRER — 80

I 4 0 B A R 2 H) 2018719 AR

61



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
MEaBERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-T-NF=A=1+—81tFE CABTIR)

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-)N\F
Notes $’000 $°000
i3 FT Fr
Operating activities rEES
Profit before taxation B Bt A g ) 177,114 205,395
Adjustments for: MATEEELFHEE:
— Interest income —FEHA 7(e) (1,127) (1,983)
- Dividend income from —FLMREESH
unlisted fund investments Az B U A 7€) (850) (849)
- Net foreign exchange gain — [ H = 5 5 7(e) (145) (175)
- Impairment of unlisted fund investments  —JEEMREE S ZRE 7(e) - 344
— Impairment of financial assets at fair value —3IZ A FEFAEBRZ
through profit or loss TREERE 7(e) 2,814 -
— Finance costs — AR 8@) 53,471 29,564
— Depreciation e 8(c) 14,838 7,057
— Impairment loss on trade receivables — R BB EE 8(c) 25 165
- Changes in fair value of investment —REMELFEEZH
properties 15 (19,419) (495)
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and —HEYE - BERRE
equipment ) 3= - 40
Changes in working capital: LEER 2 #E:
— Increase in inventories of properties —EINMEFE (9.426) (123,521)
— Acquisition of inventories of properties — B BB B A R U E
through acquisition of subsidiaries MERE - (814,017)
— Decrease in gross amount due from —RIEKEFEH
customers for contract work TRERH 32,861 22,038
- Increase in contract assets —BINENEE (194,370) -
- Decrease/(increase) in trade and other —m L, () EAR IR R &
receivables H fth fE UL R IE 212,705 (174,554)
— (Decrease)/increase in gross amount due to — (R 4 ) /B INENEF A
customers for contract work TiEER (1,187) 1,224
— (Decrease)/increase in trade and other —CEAD) e ER RS R
payables M E T IR (152,022) 82,733
- Increase in contract liabilities —EmMeEHNEE 25,555 -
Cash generated from/(used in) BEELE(FFTANES
operations 140,837 (767,034)
Tax paid ERBIE (33,368) (24,472)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBELS (FTAWN
operating activities ReFHE 107,469 (791,506)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

mallehE® ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-T-NF=A=1+—81FE CABTIR)
2019 2018
—B-NEF — N\
Notes $’000 $000
Bt For Fr
Investing activities RETE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E%W¥  ME L&E (27,748) (115)
Expenditure on investment properties EYERY (108,767) (26,681)
Interest received BUF & 634 1,983
Dividends received from unlisted fund BUWIELEMRERES MRS
investments 850 849
Purchase of fixed assets through BB BN B A RIEA
acquisition of subsidiaries B E & E (376,394) =
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BARAFEFAER
through profit or loss ZEBMEE (731) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE WEMREHRERE
plant and equipment - 4
Payments for acquisition of a subsidiary AU EE — M B AR - (500)
Deposits paid for acquisition of subsidiaries B U EE M B A R iR S - (42,000)
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEFTARETEE ~ (512,156)  (66,460)
Financing activities A E T E
Proceeds from bank loans IRITERFBHE 1,113,599 1,995,794
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (728,187) (1,048,475)
Increase in pledged deposits e EBFR (12,617) 6,811)
Interest and other borrowing costs paid BAF B R B A S SR AR (152,347) (106,581)
Dividends paid BIRE (69,555) (54,198)
Net cash generated from METBHELRSFE
financing activites 150,893 779729
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRkReEBEYERD
equivalents (253,794) (78,237)
Cash and cash equivalents at EINHRERRASZEEY
the beginning of the year 312,063 390,300
cash and cash equivalents at FRNESRESEEY
the end of the year 21 58,269 312,063
The notes on pages 64 to 171 from part of these financial statements. FOARNTNBEFTH M BN A Bk —2H -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 55 2 M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LABTTER)

1.

64

GENERAL INFORMATION

Grand Ming Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the business of building construction, property leasing
and property development. The Company was incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands as an exempted company with limited liability
on 14 August 2012 under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 9
August 2013.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 29.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 April 2018:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 22
Classification and

Measurement of Share-
Based Payment Transactions

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 5 e B i (A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
April 2018 (continued)

Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance contracts
Amendments to Transfer to Investment
HKAS 40 Property

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle and HKAS 28

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together
all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: (1) classification and measurement; (2)
impairment and (3) hedge accounting. The adoption
of HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018 has resulted in changes
in accounting policies of the Group and the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

With the exception of hedge accounting, the Group
has recognised the transition adjustments against
the applicable opening balances in equity at 1 April
2018. Therefore, the comparative information was not
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS39.

The impacts (net of tax) on the transition to HKFRS 9 on
the opening balance of reserves and retained earnings
as at 1 April 2018 is immaterial. The balance of retained
earnings as at 1 April 2018 under HKFRS 9 remained as
$2,646,444,000.

2,

RABBMBHREER (&)

(@)

TK%%ﬁnT/ﬁﬂ ETE\;%EJJﬁ%iﬁ%
ZH-R-ZF-NFHNA—B4%
M(E)

EREMBREER REEUERSENSESR

F45 (BFIK) 1 BAENERREHE
REEAZREMTA

B G HER ﬁ%%’é&iﬁﬁ@%

EA05% (B3TA)

EREMBREER HEBVERSENE R

NMUEE6FE REELERNF%

B EEME ol ]

A BBUKFEEREIN—2H
-
BAUBRELAFIRR-Z
—NE—A—BRUEHKRZF
EHMBRE S S &R E395%
CHMIE - BRARIE EES

BMTAENZAE=-FEIFE: (1)
"*E&.#E QRER Q)% FE
Frem=ZT— /\imﬂ B
RME AV B RELEFEHRE
lﬁﬁzﬂ&;‘%éﬁﬂﬁ%u&wﬁ =
B BERAERZEHRE
@Jo

B g AEEEH -F
—N\FWA—B 2 ERYN&EH

RBEHE B LA R
WEEFIWHERIZE B GE
B 53955 [ ¥t

BEEEBP RS ERSE9
HHREELREBEN (FRBR)
TEREAZE - REFTEMH
HEERBESRREEMNN =
E-N\FHA-BNERDS
2,646,444,0007T °

I 4 0 B A R 2 H) 2018719 AR 65



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 e Bl i ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LABTTER)

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (continued)

2,

66

A

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), where the
amount of change in fair value attributable to change
in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9
retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities. However,
it eliminates the previous HKAS 39 categories for
financial assets of held to maturity financial assets,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no material
impact on the Group's accounting policies related to
financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments.
The impact of HKFRS 9 on the Group's classification
and measurement of financial assets is set out below.

2. RMBBUBHREER (&)

(@) BREHET RIETEBUBRE
EU-RZZE-N\FHA—-BXE
M (&)

A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
VA 55 it % Bt (A7)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
April 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain receivables
(that the receivables do not contain a significant
financing component in accordance with HKFRS
15), an entity shall, at initial recognition, measure
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction
costs. A financial asset is classified as: (i) financial
assets at amortised cost; (i) financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI™); or (i) financial assets designated at
FVTPL. The classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is generally based on two criteria: () the
business model under which the financial asset
is managed and (ii) its contractual cash flow
characteristics (the “solely payments of principal
and interest” criterion, also known as “SPPI
criterion”). Under HKFRS 9, embedded derivatives
are no longer required to be separated from a
host financial asset. Instead, the hybrid financial
instrument is assessed as a whole for the
classification.

2. RMBEBUBHEER (&)

(a) TK%%ﬁnT/ﬁﬂ uT?xﬁﬁﬁﬁ%#ﬁi
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W (&)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

St 5 e e Wl (A )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LABTTER)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)
() Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost
if it meets both of the following conditions and it
has not been designated as at FVTPL:

- It is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that meet the SPPI criterion.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it
meets both of the following conditions and it has
not been designated as at FVTPL:

- It is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that meet the SPPI criterion.

2. RMBBUBHREER (&)

(@) BREHET RIETEBUBRE
EU-RZZE-N\FHA—-BXE

(&)
A BEOBREEAEIS -2
TA(#)
() SBIAHDERIE
(%)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

RABBMBHREER (&)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 (@) JR@FE]RETEBMBRE
April 2018 (continuea) ZA-R-ZFE-N\FWOE—HB4%E
(&)
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continuea) A BEBUBREERFIN—2H
() Classification and measurement of financial TE(#E)
instruments (continued) () ZHTANSERA;E

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. All other
financial assets not classified at amortised cost
or FVOCI as described above are classified as
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets.
On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise.

(&)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 e Bl i ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LABTTER)

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

2,

70

April 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(1)

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (continueda)

The following accounting policies are applied to
the Group's financial assets as follows:

FVTPL

Amortised
costs

FVOCI (equity
investments)

FVTPL is subsequently measured
at fair value. Changes in fair
value, dividends and interest
income are recognised in profit
and loss.

Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI are
measured at fair value. Dividend
income are recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of
the investments. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
April 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (continueda)

As of 1 April 2018, unlisted fund investments
were reclassified from available-for-sale to
FVOCI. The Group intends to hold these equity
investments for long term strategic purposes.
Under HKFRS 9, the Group has designated
these equity investments at the date of
initial application as measured at FVOCI. As
a result, financial assets with a fair value of
HK$13,540,000 were reclassified from available-
for-sale investments to financial assets at FVOCI.

2. RMBEBUBHEER (&)

(@) BREHFET RIETEBUKRE
EU-R-ZZE-NFHA—-BXE

R (&)

A EEBUBHEERFIN -/
TAH(E)

()

AT AMSERTE
(%)
RZE—N\FEOA—H"
FLEMEEESHAUED
EEF O BEERAFAER
AHMEEKZ NEE
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REBEEABETEZER
REE AR AT EF AR
fEEKEFTE Bt
RZE—N\FEOA—H"
13,540,000 A A FEE
NEMEECRAIELE
REEFHEEERAFE
TAEMEERE 2 &8
BE-

B DA A RS T 2018/10 AEERE /1



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
WA R B ok (4F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LABTTER)

2,

72

(@)

April 2018 (continued)

A

(0

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BEMNEBRUBREER (£)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 (@) BRaFEE]RRETEBMBRE
ZH-R=-FE-N\FEAE—B4XE
M (&)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued) A EBEBUBHREEEZIN -6
TE(#E)
Classification and measurement of financial () ZTHITANSEREZE
instruments (continuea) (%)
The following table summarises the original TEBARERR T
measurement categories under HKAS 39 and the —NFHA—BAZESR
new measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for BEERBEEHELNSE
each class of the Group's financial assets as at 1 3998 R B & 2R RAR &
April 2018: BERT B EEREIRN
Frer=851:
Carrying Carrying
amount as amount as
Original New at 1 April at 1 April
classification classification 2018 under 2018 under
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
RESHE
REEBEH HERSER
ZRI%E395% ELLAN
RZE-N\F —E-N\F
RESESHER REEBHEREER mA—BK MA—BK
CREE EIVRREER SE95 1O 7 X8 Al REE REE
$000 $000
T T
Unlisted fund investments Available-for-sale (at FVOCIl)  FVOCI 13,540 13,540
FLTERERES AHE (RAFERMA BRATERAEM
Hir2EHER) 2EKE
Trade receivables Loans and receivable Amortised cost 200,331 200,331
JE AR 3R Bk EW A BN
Deposits and other receivables Loans and receivable Amortised cost 53,691 53,691
B R H M REWFIR B R EWRE B AR
Restricted and pledged deposits Loans and receivable Amortised cost 66,144 66,144
2R REERFR B R EY R IE B
Cash and bank balances Loans and receivable Amortised cost 312,063 312,063
e RIR1THEER Bk EW A BN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
April 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(71)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group’s impairment model by replacing the
HKAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the “expected
credit losses (“ECLs") model”. HKFRS 9 requires
the Group to recognise ECL for financial assets at
amortised costs, and debt investment at FVOCI
earlier than HKAS 39. Cash and cash equivalents
are subject to ECL model but the impairment is
immaterial for the current period.

Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are
measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date: and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

2. RMBEBUBHEER (&)

(@) BREHFET RIETEBUKRE
EU-R-ZZE-NFHA—-BXE

M (&)

A EEBUBHEERFIN -/
TAH(E)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 e Bl i ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LABTTER)

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (continued)

2,

74

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group has elected to apply HKFRS 9's simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors,
current creditworthiness of the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-month ECLs. The 12-month ECLs
is the portion of the lifetime ECLs that results
from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLS.
When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
April 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held) or (2) the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.

Presentation of ECLs

Loss allowances for financial assets measured
at amortised cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt
investment at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
recognised in OCI, instead of reducing the
carrying amount of the assets.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(@)

April 2018 (continuead)

@)

2. RMBEBUBHREER (&)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 @) FRMFE] KB EBMBERE
ZA-R=-FE—-NFOE—HBH4%
(&)
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued) A BBHBEEEREIN -2/
IE(#&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continuea) () ZBEERGE (&)
Impact of the ECLs model EHEEBEE N ZTE
Impairment of trade receivables and (@) EWEFME L EE
contract assets
As mentioned above, the Group applies the R _E TR AR
HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure EEREBMB®E
ECLs which adopts a life time ECLs for all B E5% 1k 77 =
trade receivables and contract assets. To FATETEMEEREE
measure the ECLS, trade receivables and BIER 4% Fir 8 FE W AR 3K
contract assets have been grouped based MEHEEZZHE
on shared credit risk characteristics and HEEEE - BT =
the days past due. The contract assets EHEEEE EIK
have substantially the same risk as the ERMEHNEEDR
trade receivables. The loss allowance for BHEENEERRE
trade receivables as at 1 April 2018 was (Y5 E-iPN G
determined as follows: BB EHEWRR
BB XRBMER R
fro EINBR RN ZF
—N\FHNA—BZE
EREETWT:
Less More
than1 1to3 4to6 6to12 than12
month months months months months
1 April 2018 Current past due past due pastdue pastdue pastdue Total
HH B k-t
—E-N\§ i 123 a8 B kel
mA—AH BN &R 18 A @R 4Z6f8A 6Z12f8A 1288 @t
Expected credit loss BHEEBEE®)
rate (%) 006%  190%  11.63%  17.43%  17.55%  17.58%
Gross carryingamount  BREAE (Fr)
$000) 191,098 8913 43 218 18 347 200,737
Loss allowance EBERE(FT)
($000) 12 169 5 k' 21 61 406
No material ECL is resulted after applying HRENEERIAR
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the ECL model on 1 April 2018 and for the
year ended 31 March 2019 as the contract
assets were considered to be of low credit
risk and are not past due.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
April 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Impact of the ECLs model (continued)

(0)

Impairment of other receivables

Other financial assets at amortised cost
of the Group include deposits and other
receivables. The Group measure ECLS
which recognise 12-month ECLS unless
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial assets since
initial recognition, in which case ECLS is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. No material ECL
is resulted after applying the ECL model
on 1 April 2018 and for the year ended 31
March 2019 as the financial assets were
considered to be of low credit risk and are
not past due.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (continued)

2,

78

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii)

()

Hedge accounting

The Group elects for the accounting policy
choice to continue with the adoption of HKAS 39
on hedge accounting.

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional provision
in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was generally
adopted without restating comparative
information. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new ECLs rules
are therefore not reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March
2018, but are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 April 2018.
This means that differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9
are recognised in retained earnings and reserves
as at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, the information
presented for the year ended 31 March 2018
does not reflect the requirements of HKFRS 9 but
rather those of HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
April 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(Ilv)  Transition (continued)
The following assessments have been made on
the basis of the facts and circumstances that
existed at the date of initial application of HKFRS
9 (the "DIA"):

- The determination of the business model
within which a financial asset is held;

- The designation and revocation of previous
designations of certain financial assets and
financial liabilities as measured at FVTPL;

and

- The designation of certain investments in
equity investments not held for trading as
at FVOClI.

If an investment in a debt investment had
low credit risk at the DIA, then the Group has
assumed that the credit risk on the asset had not
increased significantly since its initial recognition.

B. HKFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with

customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”,
HKAS 18 “Revenue” and related interpretations. HKFRS
15 has established a five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at the amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services

to a customer.

RABTEBUBHREER (&)

REnFTe] /RIS BB B®RE
A -R=ZB-NEFENBE—B4E
(&)

BB BEHEEREIN — M

TEHE(#E)

() #EEZHE (&)
LAREE IR BB 15
R RIS 95R 1)) FE A H
B(IyRERBEFE
MEERBRMEDL:

- ETRANEREE
M EHBR

- EEABEHERKET
METEREERS
BEESBAERAYF
Bt NS ER

~  ETHEATERA
H o 2 E A B
BB R EHRAR
HHETRE

WA EBRENREEY]
RIER BB ARBREMNE
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2,
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(@)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1

April 2018 (continued)

B.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Ccustomers (continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method without practical expedients. The
adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant
impact on when the Group recognises revenue from
building construction, rental and rental related income
and sale of properties. The Group has recognised
the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 15
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at the date of initial application (that is, 1 April
2018). As a result, the financial information presented
for the year ended 31 March 2018 has not been
restated.

The following tables summarised the impact of
adopting HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 April 2018. There
was no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flow and its consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 March 2018:

2. RMBEBUBHREER (&)

TNFTE] RG] BB RE
EH-R=ZFE—-NEFNBE—HB4%
(&)
B BEBUEREEREISHE -KE
EEGHH W ()
REBECHARFHEERNE
B TSRS LR 155 (ERTT
BEFZE) - RMBBHFRE
R B1SE TSR AL B ERE
FEE HeNHESHEBRAR
MEBEEMBREFEELAEKXR
FE-AEECHVAEREE
B s E RIS 1557 Rt &
WRANVXERBH (A=F
—NFMHA—R)HEBIRE R
MEHRRAE - Bt ez =
T-N\EFE=A=+—HItEES
N2 BERTAREFZ -

(@)

TERBMRARAE B RERE
AIFISREARER T —/\F
A —BHERE PR RNE
Z-UAKEBE_T-N\F=
A=t - BLEFENGEARER
EXRMGA B REMEEKE
RIGRBERTE:

As at 1 April 2018
RZE-NFHNHE—H
As  Reclassifications

previously under
stated HKFRS 15 Restated
REFBHK
HEERE155
KAl E 5w BEHNoE E5l
$000 $000 $000
Fr Fir Fir
Consolidated statement of #ZRAMBERAEK (FHR)
financial position (extract)
Gross amount due from EREPEHTIIEER
customers for contract work 32,861 (32,861) =
Trade and other receivables & U BR 7 K E b fE U 508 360,608 (106,586) 254,022
Contract assets BREE - 139,447 139,447
Gross amount due to ENRFPEHNIRER
customers for contract work 1,187 (1,187) =
Contract liabilities EHEE = 1,187 1,187
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
April 2018 (continued)

B. HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)
Details of the new significant accounting policies and
the nature of the changes to previous accounting
policies in relation to the Group's various goods and
services are set out below:

Nature of the goods or services, satisfaction of

Products/Services performance obligations

ER/R% EmSRBzE ERANER

Building construction The Group determined that for contracts with customers
BFRE under building construction, there is one performance

obligation, which is the construction of buildings. The
Group determined that the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits of the Group's
performance. Furthermore, the work in progress is being
enhanced during the terms of the contracts. Thus the
Group concluded that the revenue from these contracts
are recognised over time.
AEEETRRETRERTNEFPANTE—HEN
B ARERF AEEBETRATPRAKKREER
AEERANF G Mo HRTIRESOHERAGIIM
oA ARBERAZ LS DMK B AER -
BRMBREENESFU R ARERREFRIENK

REEEAYE.
Rental related income Rental related income from investment properties are
HeRERA recognised over time as customers simultaneously receive

and consume the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs.
REMERSRBNABREEER RASERENR
BPRABRR R EEAEERLAMNF -

Sale of properties Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
MEHE customer obtains control of the asset.
WEREPEGEERFIROEAERR

RABBMBHREER (&)
(@) BRAFETRETEBMBEHRSE

EU-R-ZZE-NFHA—-BXE

® (&

B. EEBHMBHEEREI15H - KE
BEF&ERH K (&)
EAREZHRERNMRGERZ
MEBSTBREBEGTEE
gE) s EEFEHINMT

Nature of change in accounting policy and impact
on 1 April 2018
BHUREDIHERR - \FOA-BNYE

HKFRS 15 did not have significant impact on how the
Group recognises revenue from building construction.
However, upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group has
made reclassification from trade and other receivables
to contract assets since under HKFRS 15, if there is any
satisfied performance obligation but where the entity does
not have an unconditional right to consideration, an entity
should recognise a contract asset.
ERRBREEUSSRLBHASERIEFRIEN R
REEBRYZ AWM REMESHBEREELE 155
& AEEEBREESRAMENRESHHEZAH
BE RARBEEBMERE RSN HFEEAMD
ERENELEERERMHENRDRRE NEEBRERR
—HANEE-

The Group has also made reclassification from gross
amount due to customers for contract work to contract
liabilities since under HKFRS 15, if when a customer
pay consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related revenue.
REFBFHRELAE55 MR AEERDEE RS
i EPXARERRAORERPREXNREANELD
R AEETBENEFPANIRERENVEEA
neE-

Under HKAS 18, rental related income was recognised on
an accrual basis.
BEEEQERE185 BERER A B EERT

As of 1 April 2018, HKFRS 15 did not have significant
impact on how the Group recognises revenue from rental
related income from investment properties.
RZZ-\FOA—B BENBREEE 15K EY
AEERRREMERSHBRAELEATE

Not applicable as the Group did not derive any revenue
from sale of properties prior to 1 April 2018.
BARASER - \GNA-ARYEREENENE
Els RETER-

W R AR A 201810 EERE S
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group:
HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 28

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainity over Income Tax
Treatments'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures!

Amendments to: HKFRS 3,
Business Combinations'

Amendments to: HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements’

Amendments to: HKAS 12, Income
Taxes'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’
Definition of Material?

Definition of a Business?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

i The amendments were originally intended to be effective for

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of
the amendments continue to be permitted

82
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continuead)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have significant impact on
the Group's result of operations and financial positions.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(@) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the financial statements include disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

(b) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

(c) Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.

84

(@)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

4.

(@)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
VA 755 it % Wit v ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - OB TSI T)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

86

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or l0ss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 4())(ii), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

() Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in
administrative expenses.

Money lender license Indefinite

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

(€)

(d)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(i) Impairment
Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired (note 4(h)). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.

Derivative financial instruments (Under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 April 2018 and HKAS39
applicable before 1 April 2018)

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss (see note 4(e)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 e Bl i ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - OB TSI T)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

88

()

Hedging (Under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 April
2018 and HKAS39 applicable before 1 April 2018)

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction,
the effective portion of any gains or losses on re-
measurement of the derivative financial instrument to fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve.
The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or nonfinancial
liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity
to be included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of
the non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subseguently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss (such as
when interest income or expense is recognised).

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively,
any cumulative gain or loss remains in equity at that time
is accounted for according to the nature of the underlying
transactions (as discussed above) once the hedged cash
flow occurs. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that has been
reported in equity is reclassified to profit or loss immediately.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fixed assets

4.

(f)

(i)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 4(g)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment

property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 4(q)(iii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted
for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted
for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
4(g)), and the same accounting policies are applied
to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 4(g).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 e Bl i ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - OB TSI T)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

90

(f)

Fixed assets (continued)
(iij) Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 4(hy)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost or valuation net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each end of the reporting period. The
useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Plant and machinery 3-5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Assets under construction are stated at cost less
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. They are
transferred to the appropriate class of property, plant
and equipment when the construction works complete
and are ready for use.

Where parts of an item of furniture, fixtures and other
fixed assets have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

4.

®

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, except
where property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as an
investment property, is accounted for as if held under a
finance lease (see note 4(f)(i).

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property (see note 4(f)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
VA 755 it % Wit v ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - OB TSI T)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

4.

92

(i)

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment 10ss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- fixed assets (other than properties carried at
revalued amounts);

- intangible assets; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)
(continued)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’'s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or 10ss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 e Bl i ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - OB TSI T)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

94

(h)

Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

(continueq)

(i)

Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rule, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (see notes 4(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, financial assets at FVTPL and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only
at the end of the financial year to which the interim
period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in other
comprehensive income and not profit or loss.

(i)  Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018)

(M)

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
VA 55 it % Bt (A7)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i)  Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(M)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There is only one measurement category into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost. Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or 10ss. Any gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value. Dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes
in fair value, dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
VA 755 it % Wit v ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - OB TSI T)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i)  Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

4.

96

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on trade receivables, contract
assets, financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investments measured at FVOCI. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLS: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLS is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLS. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLSs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
VA 55 it % Bt (A7)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i)  Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
VA 755 it % Wit v ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - OB TSI T)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i)  Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

4.

98

(iir)

(iv)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan note
issued by the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i)  Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
COSts.

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, came
into operation on 3 March 2014. Under the Ordinance
shares of the Company do not have a nominal value.
Consideration received or receivable for the issue of
shares on or after 3 March 2014 is credited to share
capital. Commissions and expenses are allowed to be
deducted from share capital under s.148 and s.149 of
the Ordinance.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to
a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured,
the equity instruments are measured to reflect the
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for the
year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 e Bl i ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - OB TSI T)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018)

4.
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()

(M)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value
and all other financial assets are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in
the marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that
are designated as available-for-sale or are not included
in other categories of financial assets. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these assets are carried at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary
instruments, which are recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments,

- granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment 10ss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of financial asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When any part of financial asset is
determined as uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for the relevant financial asset.

For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or l0ss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 e Bl i ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - OB TSI T)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (continued)
(iii)  Financial liabilities

(iv)

)

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan note
issued by the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
COsts.

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, came
into operation on 3 March 2014. Under the Ordinance
shares of the Company do not have a nominal value.
Consideration received or receivable for the issue of
shares on or after 3 March 2014 is credited to share
capital. Commissions and expenses are allowed to be
deducted from share capital under s.148 and s.149 of
the Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (continued)
(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms
of that liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.

(k) Inventories of properties

(M)

Properties under development

The cost of properties under development comprises
specifically identified cost, including the acquisition
cost of land, aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in selling the
properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 e Bl i ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - OB TSI T)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.
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(K)

Inventories of properties (continued)

(iij) Properties held for sales
The cost of completed properties for sale comprises
the total land and development costs for that project,
being all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price, based on
prevailing market conditions, less estimated costs to
be incurred in selling the property.

Construction contracts (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018)

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated
with a customer for the construction of an asset or a group
of assets, where the customer is able to specify the major
structural elements of the design. The accounting policy for
contract revenue is set out in note 4(g). When the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense by reference
to the stage of completion of the contract at the end of
the reporting period. When it is probable that total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected l0ss is
recognised as an expense immediately. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognised profit less recognised losses and
progress billings, and are presented in the statement of
financial position as the “Gross amount due from customers
for contract work” (as an asset) or the “Gross amount due
to customers for contract work” (as a liability), as applicable.
Progress billings not yet paid by the customer are included
under “Trade and other receivables”. Amounts received
before the related work is performed are included under
“Trade and other payables”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Cash and cash equivalents

4.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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S 5 e Bl i ()
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.
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(0)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

4.

(0)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4(f)
(i), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the end of the reporting period unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or the Company has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or the Company intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.
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(0)

(P)

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

4.

@

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applies
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception./
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
VA 755 it % Wit v ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - OB TSI T)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Revenue recognition (accounting policies applies
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(M)

(ii)

Revenue from building construction

For the performance obligation related to the
infrastructure construction, the Group determines that
the customers controls all the work in progress as the
infrastructure is being constructed, in the course of the
construction, the work in progress is being enhanced
during the terms of the contracts. Therefore, revenue
from these contracts are recognised over time.
Invoices are issued according to contractual terms
and are usually payable within 30 days. Uninvoiced
amounts are presented as contract assets.

In the comparative period, the Group applied the
accounting policy as detailed in note 4(g) above. HKFRS
15 did not result in significant impact on the Group's
accounting policies. However, upon the adoption of
HKFRS 15, the Group has to made reclassification from
trade and other receivables to contract assets since
under HKFRS 15, if there is any satisfied performance
obligation but where the entity does not have an
unconditional right to consideration, an entity should
recognize a contract asset.

Revenue from sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held
for sale is recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the basis that control
over the ownership of the property has been passed
to the customer during the current accounting period,
which is the point in time when the customer has the
ability to direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all the benefits of the property. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are included in the
statement of financial position under contract liabilities.

4. FESTHBE (&)

@ Wi
B EANEEEE)

(M)

(ii)

1 ].O GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

(B=E-N\FHEA—
(%)
BFEEZ Wi
RERREEREBENBEOE
E AEEEERREPEERM
RIERERES A ERR T
BoERRARTREFIRE
B pneg - FHitt - & F A QM

£ — B A A HERR %m@k—
WERBEL BER=TRAX

M-kMEEENG @ﬁﬁ #
BES|Re

AL HAR - AN S B R A _E S
AT AT - BB
%%ﬁiﬁ%%ﬁ$%$ﬁgz
EERBERLES|BEATE A
ﬁ'%%%%%%%ﬁiﬁw
1550 1% - AR BB B EUBERR
HMEWRBEETD ﬁﬂAm
BE AARBEEVBHRESE
BIIZE15%: - M EEM 2 EKE
HETEERE KT B

RE AERERER -RENE
o
HEYRZ Kz

HEMEME S 2 W THIRIBY
MEREEZIEF D NAGET
HREBERP 2 EENASKE
RARSERTHER ZRHRE
FHRAEREIIREMEM & KR
WEMBEAN 0 - RIS T
R EHATHE Y RATIR 2 R
Koy BisRIRE 5T AER & RN
RZANBERT-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

St 5 e e W (A )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Revenue recognition (accounting policies applies

from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(iij) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

(iv) Rental related income
Rental related income is recognised on an accrual
basis.

(v) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the Group's right to receive payment
is established.

(vi) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied until 31
March 2018)

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which is at the time of
delivery and the title is passed to customer.

Contract liabilities (@ccounting policies applied from 1 April
2018)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.
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@

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applies
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

contract costs (accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018)

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to
fulfil a contract when those costs meet all of the following
criteria:

- the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify;

- the costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

- the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the cost
relate. The asset is subject to impairment.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
VA 55 it % Bt (A7)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs (continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

4.

(s)

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

1 ].4 GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

(t)

Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it

is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’'s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

(@) Valuation of investment properties
As described in note 15, investment properties are stated
at fair value based on the valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional valuers.

In determining the fair value of investment properties, the
valuers have used a method of valuation which involves,
inter-alia, certain estimates including appropriate discount
rates, terminal capitalisation rates and expected future
market rents. In relying on the valuation report, management
has exercised its judgement and is satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.

5.

REs B R AT IREREN
EFERR

RERAEESHBRE ARAEEFE
ATBEREMRERZFHZEEMBERN
BREEEF D HE SR ARE - AE&AE
ARRKLVENEELR R EMABRE-B
PREREGFTARTER

EEMEFTMRRATHIELERN - EF] &5
et SR EERRERRFEE MM
BT SHEBUE R REERHRER
ARERABEZENRKEH -

@ BREWMENMLE
FANHTESPrA - RE W E T RN B L
BEGHEMMELNHERAFESR -

REFREME R TER - H{ERDATER
AMEETESE (AR el a1
i BREEMMRE  RREAL
KNFAHARTSES - BB KEZ
BEREHFEITERHE  LERHEE
AERBERTTR

A T B IR AT RS W 201810 e 115



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 e Bl i ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - OB TSI T)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

5.

1 ].6 GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

(b)

Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 4() and 4(q)(i), revenue and
profit recognition on an uncompleted project is dependent
on estimating the total outcome of the construction contract,
as well as the work done to date. Based on the Group's
recent experience and the nature of the construction
activities undertaken by the Group, the Group makes
estimates at the point at which it considers the work is
sufficiently advanced such that the costs to complete and
revenue can be reliably estimated. As a result, until this point
is reached the amounts due from customers for contract
work as disclosed in note 18 will not include profit which the
Group may eventually realise from the work done to date. In
addition, actual outcomes in terms of total costs or revenue
may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting period, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future years as an adjustment to the amounts
recorded to date.

Impairment of trade receivables and contract
assets

Trade receivables and contract assets are reviewed by
management at the end of each reporting period to
determine the expected credit losses. The management
bases the estimates on the historical credit 10ss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and assessments of both current and forecast general
economic conditions. Credit risk assessments focus on
the customers’ past history of making payments when
due and current ability and willingness to pay, taking into
account the financial position of the customers and the
macroeconomic environment in which the customers
operate. The credit assessments also consider the status
of the construction project, i.e. whether there is any delay,
any unresolved lawsuits or contentious matters with
customers. If the financial conditions of the customers and/
or the macroeconomic environment of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
repay, additional impairment provision may be reputed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has three reportable segments. The segments are
managed separately as each business offers different products
and services and requires different business strategies. The
following summary describes the operations in each of the
Group's reportable segments:

- Construction: contracting of construction of residential
buildings, commercial buildings and data centres for external
customers and group companies

- Property leasing: leasing of data centres and office premises
- Property development: development and sale of properties

Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar order. Central revenue and
expenses are not allocated to the operating segments as they are
not included in the measure of the segment’s profit that is used
by the chief operating decision-makers for assessment of segment
performance.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

- Segment assets include all tangible, non-current and current
assets with the exception of investments in financial assets,
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade payable, accruals and other current
and non-current liabilities attributable to the business
activities of the individual segments and bank borrowings
managed directly by the segments.

- Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to income generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
WA R B ok (4F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAFRIRERRSN - LB TTHIR)
6.

(@)

SEGMENT REPORTING (continuead) 6. DEHE (&)
Segment revenue and results () DEBUN KR EE
Property
Construction Property leasing development Total
Bg NERE NERE b
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NE ZE5-)\f ZE-nF —F-\f ZB-hEFE —T-\f ZB-hE —T-)\%
$000 St $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr F Fr FIT Fr Fr Fr F
Revenue from external RENDRPH M
customers 264,918 1274528 157,460 149,405 191,032 - 613,410 1,423 933
Inter-segment revenue PEREKE 192,403 28,565 32,035 21975 = - 224,438 50,540
Segment revenue Dl 457,321 1,303,093 189,495 171,380 191,032 - 837,848 1,474,473
Segment results PEEE 84,931 172,882 86,373 89,013 58,833 (15,884) 230,137 246,011
Unallocated net income RORBMAFE 4,487 4,102
Unallocated expenses RAEZM (20,644) (15,305)
Impairment of unlisted FLTREESZHE
fund investments - (344)
Impairment of financial BRATEGAERL
assets at fair value CRHEEZAE
through profit or loss (2,814) =
Increase in fair value of REMEDTEEM
investment properties 19,419 495
Finance costs B A (53,471) (29,564)
Profit before taxation BRBeAn SR 177,114 205,395
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continueq) 6. DEI|E (&)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities by DEHEERERE
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
$’000 $°000
F 7z i
Segment assets DEWEE

Construction BE 291,067 478,882
Property leasing MEMRE 3,705,429 3,850,607
Property development VIR 2,595,957 2,045,134
Total segment assets BwoEPEE 6,592,453 6,374,623
Other financial assets HEthSrERE - 13,540
Deferred tax assets FRIERIEE B 12,436 6,425
Tax recoverable A 177 18 2,000 92
Unallocated office premises ROMPAREYE 408,558 248,704

Unallocated head office and ROMBRRIREEEE
corporate assets 20,459 26,650
Unallocated cash and bank balances A9 BIE & RIBITHEF 14,891 55,323
Consolidated total assets MAREE 7,050,797 6,725,357

Segment liabilities PWEE

Construction B 328,307 644,902
Property leasing MEHRE 976,922 1,149,073
Property development L 1,478,004 1,222,209
Total segment liabilities moatE 2,783,233 3,016,184
Tax payable FEFLIR 11,791 16,565
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIE B E 50,653 48,510

Unallocated head office and AoB AR REEEE
corporate liabilities 4,374 5,560
Unallocated bank loans ANDERITER 1,386,224 873,434
Consolidated total liabilities MAERaE 4,236,275 3,960,253

P4 P A R 7 2018710 4 119



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

WA 5 e Y i (4

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LABTTER)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(c) Other segment information

Construction
ER
2019 2018

BN “T-\E ZB-AE

Property

leasing

NERE
2019

6.

2018

7 &P
(9]

Property
development
NEBR

2019

W& (&)
H 7 2R & #

Unallocated Total
KR at
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

it A S e I S AT L ey

$000 s $000 s 5000 s $000 st $'000 St
i li i i i i i i i i
Additions tonon-current  REFRB A HEE
segment assets 196 N 118,695 025 454,671 12000 67 52 573,629 82820
(d) Geographic information d) EER
No geographic information has been presented as all of the HRAEEFRBKEEHOERBE
Group's operating activities are carried out in Hong Kong. T A EEFN MR ER -
(e) Information about major customers e) ERFEEZEFHNEHR
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total BFEAELTEP W SMAEE B
turnover of the Group is as follows: 10%3A E ¢
2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
$’000 $°000
Fr For
Customer A BEPA 212,806 1,153,455
Customer B? =P B? 148,000 —
Customer C3 xPC 70,714 70,960*
1 The revenue was derived from building construction L Wk BEFRE
2 The revenue was derived from sales of properties, which is 2 WasIR B EE - AR
identified as a related party transaction RS
3 The revenue was derived from property leasing E KR BEMERE
* Customer C did not contribute over 10% of the total turnover L EPCREZ-_ZT—N\F=A=+—
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 HIEFESAEARNERBKZEER
10%
(f) Timing of revenue recognition (H W ERFE
Construction Property leasing Property development Total
BE NERE NERR @t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-AE ZE-\f ZE-NE ZF-)\f ZE-NFE ZF-\fF ZE-nfF —T-)N\f
$000 000 $000 000 $000 5000 $000 $000
z Fr i Fr 3 T Fi Tz
At a point in time RE-HEE = = = = 191,032 — 191,032 -
Transferred over time RRmEY 264,918 1,274,528 24,060 26,204 = = 288,978 1,300,752
Revenue from other sources REEMIORE E = = 133,400 123,181 = = 133,400 123,181
264918 127458 157,460 19005 191,032 - 613410 1423933
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 55 e B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN/(LOSS)
Revenue which is derived from the Group's principal activities and

7.

(@)

s AR B A RS (&)
AR E B RN A R AR

other income and gain/(loss) are analysed as follows: Wik (BB DITT :
Disaggregation of revenue (@ WmaoiF
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
$’000 $000
Fr For
Revenue from contract with customer XEZEFAHNHUWE
Revenue from building construction BFgiEks 264,918 1,274,528
Rental related income e MK A 24,060 26,224
Sales of properties M E 191,032 =
Revenue from other sources R B H i RR A
Rental income HemA 133,400 123,181
613,410 1,423,933
Unsatisfied performance obligations b) RKETEHNER

As at 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group's existing contracts is $2,096.1
million. This amount represents revenue expected to
recognise in the future from construction contracts and
property sales contracts entered into by the customers with
the Group. The Group will recognise the expected revenue
in the future when or as the work is completed, which is
expected to occur over the next 12 to 48 months.

Assets recognised from incremental costs to
obtain a contract

For the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, there was no
significant incremental costs to obtain a contract.

RZB-NE=ZA=+—8 DBEHEX
SEREGNBHEENRGBRHE
TR D FR20.9611B 7T - W BERARAR
BEPEAEEOEEIEESHR
YEIHE S BRI R RIER MK
A REBBEBERRT 20+
8B ARG DALR TR A K HER
EHIWA -

FEE SN RIB MK AR EREE

BE-_Z—hE-_FT—N\F=A
Z+—RHIEFE BERISENESE
EARIE KA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LABTTER)

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN/(LOSS) 7. WHURHEMWARKZE  (FHE)

(continuea) (%)
(d) Details of contract liabilities d) EHEEFE
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related AEECHAATRERBEZEHNE
contract liabilities: f&:
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
$’000 $000
Frr For
Contract liabilities AHEE 25,555 -
(i)  Significant changes in contract liabilities (i) BHEEEALE
Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from rEBEHNBEXERGHER
deposits from sale of properties made by the FEI & MmHEREHBERE -
customers while the underlying services or goods are FHABERASEEBERMA
yet to be provided. Such liabilities increase as a result ISl
of the growth of the Group's business.
(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract (i) BEXNEEEZKZE
liabilities
There was no revenue recognised in relation to #2018/19%.2017/185F £ N 978
contract liabilities during FY 2018/19 and FY 2017/18. BHREBaABEMBERYR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN/(LOSS) 7. Wzl REMKARKE (EHE)

(continuea) (4&)
(e) Other income and gain/(l0ss) e) HtWARWKE " (FHE)
2019 2018
—ZE—-hF —E-N\F
$’000 $°000
Fr For
Bank interest income RITH B WA 1,127 1,983
Dividend income from unlisted fund FLEMIEBEESHREWA
investments 850 849
Net foreign exchange gain HNGE 3 F N 2 145 175
Impairment of unlisted fund investments 3 F HTIREE S 2 FE - (344)
Impairment of financial assets at fair ~ RAFEFABHZZEREE
value through profit or loss ZRE (2,814) -
Others Hb 5,179 1,096
4,487 3,759
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 e Bl i ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB RIEERRSN - ABTTHITR)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

8.

BR %t Al 2 Al
BBATEFENG (FFA) A TSR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE—N\F
$’000 $000
F For
(a) Finance costs (@) B
Interest on bank loans and other IRITERF B R EA
borrowing costs BEKA 149,614 108,568
Less: Amounts included in construction BT AERBEESN
contracts in progress o] (3,348) (7,544)
Amounts capitalised* BER{beEE* (92,795) (71,460)
53,471 29,564
(b) staff costs (including directors’ (by BEIRE(BEESEHMH)
remuneration)
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe IEREMETR 112,779 116,992
Contributions to defined contribution AEHEFCRIRGT B 2 7
retirement plans 2,924 3,184
115,703 120,176
Less: Amounts included in construction W ETAEREERD
contracts in progress Eoje (50,491) (89,854)
Amounts capitalised BRI &5 (41,321) (8,683)
23,891 21,639
(c) oOtheritems (c) HfEHE
Rental income from investment HEMEMGEHES A
properties (133,400) (123,181)
Less: Direct outgoings B BB 65,161 56,423
(68,239) (66,758)
Depreciation (note 15) e (K1at15) 14,838 7,057
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEMEBR R 2 BEEE
(note 20) (H1z220) 25 165
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ELRD BN &
- audit services —EH IR 962 895
— other services —H AR 7 140 117

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at the range of 3.56% to

3.86% (2018: 2.89% t0 3.19%) per annum
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 9. FiE®ix%H
(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (@) HEBRTZRAMVFIEHE:

profit or loss represents:

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —T—)N\F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Current tax B HA T 1]
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FABRBFESHEE
for the year 26,676 33,997
(Over-provision)/Under-provision in BEFE (GBERE) BETR
respect of prior years (464) 16
26,212 34,013
Deferred tax EAET I8
Charged/(Credited) to profit or loss Mk, (GEA) FRiER
for the year 1,902 (405)
28,114 33,608
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin BELBREZESLHASHENRARR
Islands (“BVI") and the Cayman Islands, the Group is not B AEEBEBMNEBELHERASH
subject to any income tax in the BVI and the Cayman Islands. EHEAFTEH -
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at BENGERBE DIRBEARFE (L ERN &
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for F16.5% (ZF—)\F :165% )5t & -
the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LABTTER)

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 9. FEBXE (&)
(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) R H R E K PTS B <
accounting profit before taxation at applicable BRELAIEETER AVE R -
tax rate:
2019 2018
—B-hEF —\F
$’000 $°000
Fr Fir
Profit before taxation B B4 AT 8 177,114 205,395
Notional tax on profit before taxation, IZERNBEBEINEEER 2
calculated at the rate applicable to the & H| 2 Bl &R E 2 18
profits in the jurisdictions concerned 29,224 33,890
Effect of non-taxable income EERBRANTE (12,548) (499)
Effect of non-deductible expenses LR kA0 4 17,839 3,849
Utilisation of tax losses previously ERERIRERHIAESRE
net recognised (126) -
Effect of unused tax losses not AERAEBAHRBEEEBNY
recognised 2,677 3,170
Effect of temporary differences not AEREHEERENZE
recognised (8,488) (6,770)
(Over)/under provision in respect of BAFE (BEREE) BETRE
prior years (464) 16
Others HAh = (48)
Actual income tax expense ERMEHRAS 28,114 33,608
(c) Income tax in the consolidated statement of © HREUBRRRANAEHE:
financial position represents:
(i)  Current taxation (i) ZKAEHE
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
$’000 $000
Fr For
Provision for Hong Kong Profits ~ FRZE B FI {55 B
Tax for the year 26,676 33,997
Provisional Profits Tax paid BT E SRS (16,885) (17,524)
9,791 16,473
Represented by: 5| 7
2019 2018
—E-AE —ZE-N\F
$’000 $°000
F For
Tax recoverable AU BT (2,000) (92)
Tax payable FE R TE 11,791 16,565
9,791 16,473
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 9. FiBEFHEXH (&)
(c) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (€ HMEMBARRRAVFAERIE:
financial position represents: (continuead) (&)

(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (i) ERAEEHELZERARE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities RERE B AR R A R AR IE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial MIE(EE) / BEMNAKIBS
position and the movements during the year are as RERWEEHOT
follows:

Depreciation
allowances in
excess of
the related
depreciation Hedging
Deferred tax arising from: TEEHE Tax loss reserve Total
EEBIERE SREBNE HEFE e @t
$000 $000 $000 $000
Fr FIT F F
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE-tEMA-H 42,525 (2,589) 71 40,007
Charged to other comprehensive MnEEM2EKS
income = = 2433 2,483
Charged/(Credited) to the profitor loss  #1B /(5 A) B2 4,021 (4,426) = (405)
At 31 March 2018 and R-2-NE=R=+-H
1 April 2018 R=2-N\EMA-A 46,546 (7,015) 2,554 42,085
Credited to other comprehensive MHEmZEKE
income - - (5,769) (5,769)
Charged/(Credited) to the profit or loss 1%/ (3 A) 8% 4,321 (2,420) - 1,901
At 31 March 2019 RZB-AF=B=1+-H 50,867 (9,435) (3,215) 38,217
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
$’000 $°000
FiT Fr
Net deferred tax assets ERA MR ARNERR
recognised on the B IEEE TR
consolidated statement of
financial position (12,436) (6,425)
Net deferred tax liabilities iR e MR R R AERE
recognised on the EXERIEERFE
consolidated statement of
financial position 50,653 48,510
38,217 42,085
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LABTTER)

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)
(d) At 31 March 2019, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of unused tax losses of $389,654,000
(2018: $168,110,000) as it is not probable that sufficient
future taxable profits will be available against which the
unused tax losses can be utilised. The tax losses do not
expire under current tax legislation.

10. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(@) Tax effects relating to cash flow hedges included
in other comprehensive income

9. FIB®HxXH (&)
(d) R-Z—hAE=B=+—8 BRTK
A] B EE A B 2 9 R 2R JE &R A e K1) DA R
SHARFERAMTIEERE  NEBEWER R
{55 AR #9 F¢ JA /&5 $8389,654,0000T ( =&
— J\£E : 168,110,0007T ) HE 3R IR FE Fi 18
BE -RBRITHEER  RIBEET

10. Ett2mE K E
(@) BEt AHMZEWENRESR
B TR S 2

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\&F

$°000 $000

For For

Pre-tax amount BrIiAI 258 (34,963) 15,048
Tax credited/(charged) MBEWKRA, (ZH) 5,769 (2,483)
Net-of-tax amount Gk (29,194) 12,565

(b) Components of other comprehensive income,

(b) HitZEWBHENAERBH (B

including reclassification adjustments B0 ERE)
2019 2018
—E-AE —ZE-N\F
$’000 $°000
Fr For
cash flow hedges: REeEREYH:
Effective portion of changes in fair value 4 R & fER A ¥ T A
of hedging instruments recognised NEEEBNB R H
during the year (34,963) 15,048
Net deferred tax credited/(charged) to %Il 37 E 4 2 [ U 25 FY IR SE 7 18
other comprehensive income FURAL(ZH) 5,769 (2,483)
Net movement in the hedging reserve 7 E th & T Ue 28 I BE SR G A 1)
during the year recognised in the HEEEFEE
other comprehensive income (29,194) 12,565
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(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. EEHMH
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were as ENSRENTEEREST 2HMAT :
follows:
2019
“E-NF
Basic salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind Retirement
BEXgFe scheme
Fees EHR Bonuses contributions Total
ok ENER A BRARGEMR @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Executive Directors HTES
Chan Hung Ming BR1LA - 2,187 360 14 2,561
Lau Chi Wah 25 - 2,187 360 18 2,565
Yuen Ying Wai RER - 2,271 360 18 2,649
Kwan Wing Wo #oK A - 2,179 340 18 2,537
Independent BUFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Tsui Ka Wah BRRE 307 - 51 - 358
Kan Yau Wo R A 307 - 51 - 358
Mok Kwai Pui Bl REE 307 - 51 - 358
Lee Chung Yiu Johnny P 307 - 51 - 358
Total @t 1,228 8,824 1,624 68 11,744
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

1. ESEHEM(Z)

2018
“F-N\E
Basic salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind Retirement
5 scheme
Fees IR Bonuses  contributions Total
e BWREF AL RIREEIER B
$000 $ooo $000 000 $000
FIT FT FIT FT FT
Executive Directors HITES
Chan Hung Ming RN - 2,014 491 18 2,523
Lau Chi Wah BEE - 2,014 491 18 2,523
Yuen Ying Wai RERE S 2,020 491 18 2,529
Kwan Wing Wo Bk - 1,859 444 18 2,321
Independent BUFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Tsui Ka Wah BRE 283 S 69 = 352
Kan Yau Wo Gl 283 - 69 - 352
Mok Kwai Pui Bill KRR 283 - 69 - 352
Lee Chung Yiu Johnny FRE 283 - 69 - 352
Total Mt 1,132 7,907 2,193 72 11,304

No director received any emoluments from the Group as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the year. No director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018.

During the year, there are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodied corporate by and
connected entities within such directors (2018: Nil).

The Company did not operate any share option scheme for the
purchase of ordinary shares in the Company during the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

FAMEEEWEBAEB TS fEAN
BAEESININBAEERNESNIESTE
LBUEE BE-_E-AER-_ZT—N\&
A+ HLFE BEEERERRE
REE B o

FAMERRBUNES JEHEABRENE
REEEEMECERARmAZER £
ERHEMRG (ZF—\F &) -

ARBRBEZF-NFR=_FT-N\F=H
=+ — B ILFE AR ETEEREEIA
EEACIRAN/NGT RS g v
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12. EMOULMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(@)

Emoluments of five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2019 include 4 (2018: 4) directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 11. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining individual is as
follows:

12.

%%%%ﬁ%ki&%&%ﬂ@%

(@)

hEmEHFMATHE
BE_ZT-NF=A=1t—HILFE"
AEBAURSFMALEEIE (=
T—N\F: 4R)EF EMERH&E
M - HMRA TS AR T -

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-)N\F
$000 $000
F For
Salaries, allowances and benefits in o EBREMEF
kind 2,627 2,337
Discretionary bonuses B TEAT 418 570
Retirement scheme contributions BRRET B R 18 18
3,063 2,925
The above individual's emoluments are within the following FRATENESHENT :
band:
2019 2018
—E—-hE —EF-N\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 2,500,001t £3,000,0007% - 1
$3,000,001 to $3,500,000 3,000,001t £3,500,0007T 1 -

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join, or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office for
the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

Emoluments of senior management

Other than the emoluments of the Directors and five
highest paid individuals disclosed in notes 11 and 12(a), the
emoluments of the remaining senior management fell within
the following bands:

BE_ZT-NF=A=t—HIFE"
2N 3 % A 0] AL A = B A =
A ERB 2 E ARSI AR E B K
PO INAZR &R (8] 55 ) 22 B K A A BE R AR
B(ZT-N\F:E)-

EREEENS

BRI ENRREQMEENEERR
UZRSHMA LTSN ST aRE
BEMNMSENR N7 EER :

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE N
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,001t 2 1,500,0007T
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001t 22,000,0007T -
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,0017T 22,500,0007T 1 -
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12. EMOULMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12. ZAEEEFMATRSREEEMH
INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT ® (&)
(continueaq)
(b) Emoluments of senior management (continued) b) SHREEEME (Z)
No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of its senior BE_Z—NF=ZA=T—HLEFE"
management as an inducement to join, or upon joining the REEYERFASREREENE
Group or as compensation for loss of office for the year A ERRSIMAREBEHR A
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil). REERGRESIEABERBEE (=28
—N\F |
13. DIVIDENDS 13. K&
(@) Dividends attributable to the year: (@ BREAFHRE:
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZT-N\F
$’000 $000
Fr For
Interim dividend declared and paid of B &k & A9 F EIR B
4.0 HK cents (2018: 4.0 HK cents) FR%A.075 (L
per share ZE—-N\F 4081) 28,391 28,391
Final dividend proposed after the end R EHREBEZHIRE 2
of the reporting period RARAR B AR5.878 1L
of 5.8 HK cents (2018: 5.8 HK cents) ZZE—N\F:58%8)
per share 41,167 41,167
69,558 69,558
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting MRS BIRE E R e 2 KA B & R ER
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the EHRERBAE-
reporting period.
(b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial by BRALE—EMBRFENRES:
year:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
$’000 $°000
Fr For
Final dividend in respect of the FERH AR T E
previous financial year, approved B FEEXRER S
and paid during the year of 5.8 HK B RE5.85 1l
cents (2018: 4.0 HK cents) per share (=Z— \F : 4050) 41,167 25,810
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Reported earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$149,000,000 (2018: $171,787,000) and the weighted average
number of 709,771,173 shares (2018: 709,771,173 shares) in
issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic
earnings per share as the Company had no dilutive potential
shares in existence during the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018.

Underlying earnings per share

For the purpose of assessing the underlying performance
of the Group, basic and diluted earnings per share are also
presented based on the underlying profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of $129,581,000 (2018:
$171,292,000), which excludes the effects of changes in fair
value of investment properties. A reconciliation of profit is as
follows:

14. BRER

(@)

REMMTZBRER
BREABFTIRIEARR AR =RE
FE (55 #11149,000,0007T ( =& —/)\4F :
171,787,0007T ) R FEAE ZE1THADHY N
REEI9E0709,771,173% (=T — )\ :
709,771,1730% ) 5+ & -

BE_Z—hLFrRZE—N\F=A
=t+—HIEFEBHE AR RN EEE
ey heREERMN ESREAR
AFEE -

ERERZR
EAFEAEB 2 HWEKERE &
BEARBERFIZE MR EDE
ARFEESH R ENT ARG EERE
JE M 2 EHE % F1)129,581,0007T (==
— J\£E :171,292,0007T ) M 51 & I [F] 6%
25 @A HERIT

2019 2018

—ZE-hEF —ZE-)N\F

$’000 $°000

F 7z i

Profit for the year FAE 149,000 171,787
Change in fair value of investment BEYMERTEE

properties (19,419) (495)

Underlying profit for the year F AR R T 129,581 171,292
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15. FIXED ASSETS 15. BEEE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Buildings  other fixed Assets
Investment held for assets under
properties Sub-total ownuse ffi-#ER construction Sub-total Total
RENE et BRNE HtETEE EREE N H
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr fr fr fr fr Fr Fr
Cost or valuation: RAGHE:
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\FEA-A 3,627,300 3,627,300 259,669 18,333 - 278,002 3,905,302
Additions NE 127,487 127,487 3,383 a7 23,894 27,748 155,235
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHE AR 418,394 418,394 - - - - 418,394
Surplus on revaluation BiA% 19,419 19,419 - - - - 19,419
Transfer EEr (597,600) (597,600 597,600 - - 597,600 -
Written off/disposal BE/ e - - - (883) - (883) (883)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=1+—A | ,3,’525L090, B ,31525L090, o ,8§0L6§2, - 17}317 - 33L824, - ,992L4E7, - ,4,’427L497,
Representing: BR:
Cost KA - - 860,652 17,921 23,894 902,467 902,467
Valuation fhiE 3,595,000 3,595,000 - - - - 3,595,000
3,595,000 3,595,000 860,652 17,921 23,894 902,467 4,497,467

Accumulated depreciation: RiHE:

At 1 April 2018 RZZ-\FEA-A - - 10,965 13,179 - 24,144 24,144
Charge for the year (ote 8(c)) R (H380) - - 12,945 1,893 - 14,838 14,838
Written off/disposal HE/ e - - - (883) - (883) (883)
At 31 March 2019 RZF-AFZA=t-A - - 33L910, - 14L1§9 7777777 - §8L0297 - §8L0297
Net book value: REEE:

At 31 March 2019 W-E-NE=R=+—-H 3,595,000 3,595,000 836,742 3,732 23,894 864,368 4,459,368
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15. FIXED ASSETS (continuea) 15. BEEE (&
Furniture,
fixtures and
Buildings other fixed
Investment held for assets
properties Sub-total ownuse  H-RER Sub-total Total
RENE NGt BERNE EtETEE Mgt @
oo St St St St Sooo
F Fr F FI FT F
Cost or valuation: BASEE:
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FEA—H 3,586,600 3,586,600 259,669 18,268 277931 3,864,537
Additions NE 40,205 40,205 - 115 15 40,320
Surplus on revaluation EfRR% 495 495 - - - 495
Written off/disposal RE/HE - - - (50) (50) (50)
At 31 March 2018 R-E-N\E=ZR=1+-H o 73,61213907 o 9,921390 77777 gS%éé‘? 777777 1 §3§3 77777 2]@092 77777 3 ?()?%02 -
Representing: SR
Cost AR S S 259,669 18,333 278,002 278,002
Valuation e 3,627,300 3,627,300 - - - 3,627,300
3,627,300 3,627,300 259,669 18,333 278,002 3,905,302
Accumulated depreciation: ZHRE:
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+ENA—H S = 5172 1,31 17,093 17,093
Charge for the year (nofe 8(c) ERT (M) - - 5,193 1,864 7,057 7,057
Written off/disposal RE/HE - - - ©) (6) )
At 31 March 2018 R=2-\F=A=t-A - - j(l9§5 777777 1 31119 777777 2 ZE1il4 777777 274,11%7
Net hook value: REEE:
At 31 March 2018 R=E-N\E=A=+-AR 3,627,300 3,627,300 248,704 5,154 253,858 3,881,158
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(4 BIFERRON - AT TTHIIR)
15. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(@)  The fair value of the Group’s investment properties is Level 3
recurring fair value measurements. The movement of these

15. BIEEE (&)
@ AEEOBREVENATEBE=HK
EHMATE B o S5 2 EH

balances are as follows: e
2019 2018
—E-IF —T-N\F
$’000 $°000
Fr FiT
At 1 April RO A—H 3,627,300 3,586,600
Additions NE 127,487 40,205
Additions through acquisition BRWENBRATARE
of subsidiaries 418,394 -
Fair value adjustment NEEHE 19,419 495
Transferred to buildings EEREARME
held for own use (597,600) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 3,595,000 3,627,300

The fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “Increase in fair value of
investment properties” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3.

The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31
March 2019 and 31 March 2018 by Colliers International
(Hong Kong) Limited, an independent firm of surveyors,
who have among their staff Members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued, on a market value
basis. The management of the Group has discussion with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

REMENRAFEIAERGEABRR
W IREMERAFEE ] HARRER

RZE-NF=A=+—RHILFEH
N B—BRRE_R BN BEE T
ABEFE=ZMOBALEL -

AEENRENER-_F—NEF=A
=t—-HBER=FE-NF=A=1+—H
BB AT NERYEER (F
B)BERAR (RETETRHERER
EMSZEEE  BRHEVENLIMN
BRIBA I EERSR) mmERER
BE-AREEEENSETRREER
HEMETEERMAERR REE
EREZEHEMETH R
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15. FIXED ASSETS (continuea) 15. BEEE (&)
@  (continuea) @ (&)
The following table shows the significant unobservable T3 ABREE R ANE KT A B
inputs used in the valuation model: HIE -
Properties Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs Adopted rate/value
M ER % THBERYE ERGFE/EE
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
Investment properties
REME
- Data centres Income approach - Risk-adjusted discount rate 8% 8%
discounted cash flow
analysis
— BB WNE-MRASRENT  BRARURAE
Expected market rental growth 3.5% 3.5%
EHMBHSER
Expected occupancy rate 93% -100% 97% -100%
BHTYLER
Terminal capitalisation rate 4.25% 4.50%
BIFEREE
- Office premises Market comparison method Market unit sale rate of saleable $22,144 per $20,215 per
area, after taking into account square feet Square feet
the location and size factors
~-WLEME TS EE FALBMAPNEE 715 BEAR BFEAR
EAHERER 22,1447 20,2157C
The fair value of investment properties — data centres is BREME-HEP L2 ATFEDRE
determined on the basis of capitalisation of discounted cash BRI ESREERNEDINEE  B@D
flow analysis by discounting a projected cash flow series A AR AR R EZE
associated with the properties using risk-adjusted discount MEBEN—RINBRRERE - (418
rates. The valuation takes into account expected market ERINZEMENTRIM S HESIER
rental growth and occupancy rates of the properties. The RHMEE - FRAMREDAEREHEA
discount rates used have been adjusted for the quality and ERERRMEAREAFPNEERR
location of the buildings and the tenant credit quality. The fair B -REVE-BHEFLHQTES
value measurement of investment properties — data centres SHBHAMBHSEERBHEERKE
is positively correlated to the expected market rental growth Lt - i B B A B AL IR R I 4R & AR b
and the occupancy rate and negatively correlated to the risk- RN R ©

adjusted discount rate and terminal capitalisation rate.

045 B B O 4 R 2 W) 2018710 AEpEmRE 137



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S 5 e Bl i ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - OB TSI T)

15. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(@

(continued)

The fair value of investment properties — office premises is
determined on the basis of assuming sale of the property
interest in its existing state by making reference to
comparable sale transactions as available in the relevant
market. The valuation is subject to suitable adjustments
between the subject property and the comparable
properties. The fair value measurement of investment
properties — office premises is positively correlated to the
market unit sale rate of saleable area.

The Group leases out a number of building facilities under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 5 t0 20 years, with an option to renew the lease after that
date at which time all terms are renegotiated.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment property are
classified as investment properties.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

15. BIEEE (&)

@)

(%)
BREME-—PLREYEZRAFETIR
FEOERBERRTHE - WL IR
MGAILLEHER 5 - TRMEZHE
HEAI Y E FEHBERE - R E
ME-RREMEZAFEFEET
LEREEEEKEL-

AEERBEEHESTANEE T2
FRt-ZFHE-—RNFLSHRE
THE - WEEEERNRREEEY
Ry B 377 195 78 P A 1R

BEMEINRERETABAREER
T HENARENELZIERADE D

AEERBETAIHELLHEENAR
FEd e R ERIBAREMNT :

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

$°000 $000

Fr FT

Within 1 year —F R 133,400 125,217
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREZFA 92,690 124,203
After 2 year but within 5 years ZFBERFA 205,058 187,081
After 5 years hF & 211,378 240,903
642,526 677,404

The Group's buildings held for own use and investment
properties are situated in Hong Kong and held under
medium-term leases.

The Group's buildings held for own use and investment
properties were pledged against bank loans, details of which
are set out in note 23(a).
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(BRFrRIRERRSN - A TTEIR)

16. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS HhEmEE

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

$°000 $°000

F For

Available-for-sale securities, AIHHERS  BmiG®RE

quoted but unlisted (note) B3k (22) - 13,540

Financial assets at FVOCI EAFEFAEMEGE s SREE 12,710 -

Financial assets at FVTPL BEAVEABS eREE 7,220 -
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 using the cumulated effect i ARECERIFTEINTIERTEY
method and adjusted the opening balances as at 1 April 2018, and B ELERESE AER_T—N\FNA
amounts previously presented as “Available-for-sale securities” was — ARV WIS KR A TR E
reclassified to “Financial assets at FVOCI" (see note 2(a)(A)(i). Hx | MEBEHNOEE [RATFEFAR

sz @ RVEE] (RHTEE2@)A)0))

17.

The available-for-sale securities and the financial assets at FVOCI
were pledged as security for the bank loans granted to the Group

(see note 23(a)).

GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR

A EEFURIRAFER AR R
RMEECHEMMESR TAKERITENRN

R (RMFE230)) -

17. Bl BNEFEHNIRESR

CONTRACT WORK
2019 2018
—ZE-NF — )\
$’000 $000
Fr Fir
Gross amount due from customers EREFEHNIRESRE
for contract work
Contract costs incurred plus recognised B S DA INE #ERR % AR
profits less recognised losses B RREE - 2,852,502
Less: Progress billings received and W B e WGE E SR8
receivable = (2,819,647)
- 32,861
Gross amount due to customers EREFEHNIRESE
for contract work
Progress billings received and receivable B2 U K e W B SRR - 275,628
Less: Contract costs incurred plus BB BRES ’JEZKJJD
recognised profits less recognised losses EHRE N EREE = (274,447)
— 1,187
Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, gross amount due from customers RIRAE BB E R B1S5RER - BKE

for contract work and gross amount due to customers for contract
work are included in contract assets (note 18(b)) and contract

liabilities, respectively (note 18(c)).

FEHTIREBNENEFEHIEERED
DRIEFAE LB E (HFE18(D)
(HMFEE18(0)

JMEHEBIE
JA e
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18. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONRACT LIABILITIES

BENEENGHNER
2019 2018
—F-NF =T-)\F
$°000 $000
T TT

CONTRACT ASSETS
Contract assets arising from

BREE

performance under construction
contracts:

Contract costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses
Less: Progress billings received and

ERERE R

receivable

Retention receivables FEUAR B8 3k I8
CONTRACT LIABILITIES EHEE
Deposits from sales of properties HEEFITS

@)
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The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 using
the cumulative effect method and adjusted the opening
balances as at 1 April 2018.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously
presented as “Gross amount due from customers for
contract work” and “Retention receivables” were reclassified
to “Contract assets” (see note 2(a)(B), note 17 and note 20).
All the amounts are expected to be billed within one year
from the end of the reporting period, except for the amounts
of $72,066,000 at 31 March 2019 relating to retention
receivables which are expected to be recovered over one
year.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously
presented as “Gross amount due to customers for contract
work” were reclassified to “Contract liabilities” (see note
2(a)(B) and note 17). The amounts had been recognised as
revenue during the year.

R+ B W e M TR SRR

BITREGHELENANEE:

BB A S KRN DN E #E TR0 FR

3,858,766 S

(3,734,659) =

196,173 =

25,555 =

AEEEERRAZEIVNIERE
BB IS E A RIE 95 K 1558 I F
BR T/ \FUA—BoH&ERR -

PRIR N E 7S B 7 RS 2RI SE 1557 1%
LRSI RA [BREFAHIEEE]
R IEWREBIIE] meBEETH A
Ble0EE] (RMiE2@)B) WHiE17
NMMFE20)) © P BOBTERHSIE RS 2B
RKe—FREE BEBERERER
BER -_ZE—NF=A=+—HHSHE
72,066,000 T AR B 1B — F & UL [B]

KRB R REERIE1SRIL - &
AIETA TEBNEFEMNIRRERI NG
BEEHFOBE(ANEE] (R
2@)B) %Ki FE17) - R R E RN FRHE
RBARUA -
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19. INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES 19. M¥EFE

2019 2018
—ZE-NEF —E-N\F
$°000 $°000
FT For

Properties under development located in R EE— R EHAREE
Hong Kong — medium term lease BRAPME 1,347,305 1,156,537

Properties held for sales located in UREE—FHHERZN
Hong Kong — medium term lease BHEHEE Z2ME 733,132 837,608
2,080,437 1,994,145

(@ The amounts of properties under development are not (@ TERAVEEBHHETISHNREDARZ
expected to be recovered within twelve months from the %+ @& AW -
end of the reporting period.

(b) At 31 March 2019, leasehold land included in the properties by RZE—NF=ZA=+—H0 BE+RY
under development amounted to $938,880,000 (2018: ¥8E2HE T H{EE A938,880,000
$938,880,000). 7T (=ZZF— \F: 938,880,0007T) °

(c)  The Group's inventories of properties were pledged against € FEBNMEFEEEEFURIGR
bank loans, detail of which are set out in note 23(a). TER BEFHBHAWE23@)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

St 5 e e Wl (A )
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(BREFRIFEERSN - LABTTER)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

JE WA B R I L A B W R IR

2019 2018

—B-nE —T)\F

$000 $000

Fr For

Trade receivables (note (i) FEUR R (773)) 52,328 200,737
Less: impairment B ORE (431) (406)
51,897 200,331

Deposits, prepayments and e FERARIEREA

other receivables J& W R IE 65,021 53,691
Retention receivables (note (i) FEUUR B Fk18 (7)) — 106,586
116,918 360,608

Note:

(i) Except for an amount of $20,318,000 (2018: $23,120,000) as at 31
March 2019, which is expected to be recovered after one year, the
remaining balances are expected to be recovered within one year.

(i) Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, retention receivables are included in
contract assets (see note 2(a)(B) and note 18).

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables (net of
allowance for doubtful debts), based on invoice dates, is as

h BRZZE-AF=ZA=Z=+t—HBRH
20,318,0007¢ ( = — J\ % : 23,120,0007T )
R RIBTRHIR —F R mIN - SR T EERTRH
R—FRRE -

(i) RERABBHERELENFEI1555% - FEUR
BRIEF AANEAE (RME20)B) R MiE
18) °

REZEZAMAEAEEEYERR (FORR
REE) MIRE DTN

follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
$°000 $000
F For
Less than 1 month DR —{EA 47,895 191,098
More than 1 month but less than 3 months  #Bi@E—EAELR=EA 2,481 8,895
More than 3 months but less than 6 months i@ =1E A {2 LR 7< 1,093 279
More than 6 months @7~ E A 428 59
51,897 200,331
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuea) 20. EWERA R H M EWRIE (&)
The movement of the impairment during the year, including both FARENES (BEREMERBREE)
specific and collective l1oss components, is as follows: W
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
$’000 $’000
F 7z F7T
At 1 April RMEA—H 406 241
Impairment loss recognised (rnote 8(c)) BRERBERE (Hi#8(c)) 25 165
At 31 March R=A=+—H 431 406
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither I AR AE BN 2k BB VEE BB H FE UK BR ZR AV BR
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as O
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
$’000 $°000
FT T
Neither past due nor impaired BABATREE 47,895 190,986
Less than 1 month past due B E DR —1E A 21 8,744
Over 1 month but less than EHBEA—EABELR=(EA
3 months past due 2,460 38
Over 3 months but less than wmE=EAERLRNEA
6 months past due 1,093 180
Over 6 months but less than AR E A E DR+ =@ A
12 months past due 95 97
Over 12 months past due EHAER A =& A 333 286
N 4,002 ¢ 9,345 _
51,897 200,331
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21. RESTRICTED AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH 21. SR4IRESHEFERURE L LR

AND BANK BALANCES THE
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
$°000 $000
F For
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTET 144,893 361,393
Fixed deposits FEHTFR 17,854 16,814
. 162,747 378,207
Less: o
Pledged deposits (note (}) BB FR (a20) (72,854) (60,080)
Restricted deposits (note (ii) SR BT () (31,624) (6,064)
_(104,478)  (66144)
Cash and bank balances as stated in HRAEMBRRERANR SR
the consolidated statement of financial ROTBEFREERERERAN
position and cash and cash equivalents RekRESEFED
as stated in the consolidated cash flows
statement 58,269 312,063
Note: it -

0]

(i

144 GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

The balances represent bank deposits pledged to secure banks
loans of the Group (see note 23(a)).

Included in the restricted deposits amounted to $25,560,000 (2018:
Nil) in total were the proceeds received from sales of properties
of a property project deposited into designated bank accounts of
the Group which were limited to principal repayment and interest
payment of the corresponding secured bank loans. The remaining
balances represent security deposits placed by a tenant of data
centre in a bank according to the terms of the tenancy agreement
entered into with the Group. The Group has no absolute right and
control over the bank balance as the usage of that security deposits
is specifically restricted under the tenancy agreement.

(i)

BB FERITFREERAERRITE
RV (R F3E23(0) ) ©

BIERZ R FIRITE K F 48 80A25,560,000
T(ZE—N\F E)LE—EAYEER
W ZFERBEIFALAEBZIEEFD
MZERIRANEEEE 2 G EIFRT
BRNASEF S - 2 T IE— 2 8E
FLEPREEASEETINEERZK
REABRITZRES - BREHERS &R
BEMEAZIRSE  MASEHZRITLE
T3 30 4 48 S RE 1) S 422 ) 4 o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTETR)

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

22. BENRRKEMEN IR

2018 2018

—E—-hEF —Z2—N\F

$°000 $000

Fr Fr

Trade payables FERTER K 26,235 144,450

Other payables and accrued charges Hih e sk IE R EETE F 41,552 56,402

Rental and other deposits (note (i) e kEaize (220) 7,174 8,295

Receipts in advance TEUBR X 4,050 2,465

Retention payables (note (i) FETARE 7018 (2237)) 78,733 96,690

157,744 308,302

Note: it

(i) Except as disclosed in notes (i) and (iii) below, all of the trade and (i) ETTYW‘E i) K (i) BT % 88 & S+ P 1SS

other payables are expected to be settled within one year.

(i) Except for an amount of $7,174,000 (2018: $7,174,000) as at 31
March 2019, which is expected to be settled after one year, the
remaining balances are expected to be settled within one year.

(i) Except for an amount of $40,879,000 (2018: $53,394,000) as at 31
March 2019, which is expected to be settled after one year, the
remaining balances are expected to be settled within one year.

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables, based on

(i)

(iif)

AR EHAMEN FIRTERR —FAEE -

BR-_ZE-—HhE=A=+—HBAH
7 174,0007t ( =Z — /A4 : 7,174,0007T ) K9

RIBEN—FREE B T ESRTEHEN—
Emzn/ﬁ °

KR_ZZBE-NAF=ZR=T—-—HBAH
40,879,0007T ( =% — J\ % : 53,394,0007T )
BVRIRTRAT N —F R AEB N SR T A ERTEER
R—FREEE -

RIBHZ A EAKBEEMNRRERE D

invoice dates, is as follows: T
2019 2018
—E—-REF —E—N\F
$000 $000
For For
Less than 1 month LR —1{E A 25,677 133,812
More than 1 month but less than 3 months  #Bi@—E BB R =EA 558 9,739
More than 3 months but less than 6 months  #8i@ =18 A {8 R /<@ A = 858
More than é months but less than 1 year BEANEAE LR —F = 41
26,235 144,450
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23. BANK LOANS 23. RITER
2019 2018
—ZE-NEF —E-N\F
$000 $000
F For
Bank loans IRITER
— Secured — B 3,970,757 3,564,766
— Unsecured — KR = 20,579
3,970,757 3,585,345
The bank loans were repayable as follows: IRITERARIN T FHER
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
$000 $000
Fr For
Within 1 year and included in —FARIIAREBEE
current liabilites 782,538 403,703
After 1 year and included in —FERRIAFETBEE:
non-current liabilities:
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEA 335,590 752,283
After 2 years but within 5 years WEERERFA 2,734,876 2,397,573
After 5 years hF% 117,753 31,786
__ 3188219 . 3,181,642
3,970,757 3,585,345
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23. BANK LOANS (continued) 23. BITER(E)

(@) At 31 March 2019, the bank loans bear interest ranging from
3.31% t0 4.41% (2018: 2.64% t0 3.74%) per annum and were
secured by the following assets:

@)

R-BE-—NE=A=+—8 817E
HEERNENF331%F4.41% (=&
— J\EE 1 2.64%%E3.74% ) » W LA T 511 &
EVEER:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZE-N\F

$’000 $000

Fr For

Investment properties "EME 3,595,000 3,627,300

Property, plant and equipment W BB REE 836,741 248,704

Available-for-sale securities AHEERS - 13,540
Financial assets at FVOCI WA EG AHEMEEKE

ZEmMEE 12,710 =

Inventories of properties WMEFE 2,080,437 1,994,145

Pledged deposits BHEAFH 72,854 60,080

Other assets Hin &&= 40,885 60,941

6,638,627 6,004,710

In addition, at 31 March 2019, the banking facilities of the
Group were secured by the following:

- assignment of project proceeds, project insurance
and fire insurance policies for certain construction
contracts in relation to certain banking facilities
granted to the Group with maximum amount of
$200,000,000 (2018: $415,000,000);

- assignment of all rentals and all other moneys,
sales proceeds and insurance over the investment
properties of the Group in relation to certain bank
loans granted to the Group with carrying amount of
$2,551,840,000 (2018: $2,404,725,000); and

- share mortgages over the entire issued and paid-up
share capital of certain subsidiaries.

(b)  Certain of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain ratios as are
commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants the
drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. As long as the Group complies these covenants,
it is considered that the respective drawn down facilities will
not be repaid on demand.

N RZB-NAF=A=+—HB 'K
SEMIRTRVE JIA TFIE B (EER

- HERETREALHMIELEX
B-BEBRRAXBRBRE K
EEERETRITHE HES
% %8 /200,000,000 (ZZE— N\
£ 415,000,0007T) ;

- BEEASEREVEMNMEHR
& RFTERIE - HEMBRIEMN
MRE S AEEERE TR
B3 HEIREE A2,551,840,000
T (ZZFE—NF: 2,404,725,000
L) &

- HETHEARANZHMEHTR
RV B Bt H IR -

AEENETRITBREATAETA
MEERBLRNR® UEREERL
RES B REEL R ERLHE - A
B8 R 25s - PTIRERL A IS B /R IR
EREE - ARBTHEZRBETZS
B REASEETZER
o RDMBRERSTEREREER-
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23. BANK LOANS (continued)

23. SRITERK (&)

(b)  (continued) b (&)
During FY 2018/19, the Group was in breach of a covenant 2018/19F E I AR AEBE 2 &
under loan agreements with a bank as the Group’s gearing AEEXERSR—EIRITRE  ~EE
ratio was higher than that required by that bank. Prior to ERTHZBITEIINERBZET
the end of the reporting period, the Group had obtained a 2R NIRERBRA AEEEBE
written consent from the bank to waive the rights entitling ZIRITEERE - REZIRITAE Ltz
the bank to declare the relevant outstanding loan balance RMEMHEBEREEERERAEE
immediately due and payable due to the breach of the MRZAEOEN Bt R=ZF—NF
covenant. Accordingly the outstanding balances amounted = A=1T—HREEZ##256,257,000
to $56,257,000 and $365,745,000 are classified as a current 7T }365,745,0007T 5 Rl D f8 AR B K
and non-current liability as at 31 March 2019, respectively. EMmEBEE-
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk rEBERRSESRBRANE —TF
are set out in note 31(p). BEE M FE3D) °
24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24. fTHEE®MI A
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
$’000 $000
Fr For
Cash flow hedges: interest rate swaps RERELE P FRFHELH (19,487) 15,477
Represented by: B
Non-current assets ERBEE 288 15,821
Non-current liabilities FEMBEE (19,775) (344)
(19,487) 15,477
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The notional principal amounts of derivative financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were as follows:

RBEPRREENITESR T AR
BEAGSREMNT

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-)N\F

$°000 $°000

Fr Fir

Interest rate swaps (note 31(c)(}) FIEBEBE X (H523100)) 1,636,896 1,645,943

Derivative financial assets/liabilities represent the amounts
the Group would receive/pay if the positions were closed
at the end of the reporting period respectively. Derivative
financial instruments that did not qualify for hedge
accounting and their corresponding changes in fair values
have been recognised in the profit or loss.

All derivative financial instruments qualified for hedge
accounting were deemed effective for cash flow hedge
purposes and no ineffective portion was recognised in profit
or loss for the FY2018/19 and FY2017/18.

()

TEEREE BBEENASEMNER
EHR TR RS U, AT 8 O -
TRHEEMETEHPEIENDT
EeRIAREQNTENEREDHE
MIBR AR -

FIERAERETHEREY Fest
EMTTESRITI AN AEWE DIRE
B BUR2018/19%2017/18F E 38
BERED K ERN B
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25. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF SUBSIDIARIES

@

On 15 December 2017, the Company, through a wholly-
owned subsidiary, entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to acquire the entire interests of
Excel One Global Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary
Marvellous Investments Limited (collectively referred as to
“Excel One Group”), and the shareholder’s loans, at a cash
consideration of $418,394,000. Excel One Group is principally
holding certain shop premises in Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
for property investment proposes. By analysing the inputs,
process and output of the company, the acquisition did not
constitute an acquisition of business and was accounted for
as acquisition of assets. The transaction was completed on
13 April 2018 and Excel One Group became subsidiaries of
the Company accordingly.

The assets acquired and the liabilities recognised at the date
of acquisition were as follows:

25. ERWEHBLATWBEE

@)

R-_E—+tF+_A+HHB AAA
BBH—2ENBRARE—BBIE
=] % - WiEExcel One Global
LimitedA R K 2 & i B A Al X 1%
BEAHR AR (H7F8Excel Onet=E )
MEHESMREER BeRES
418,394,0007T ° Excel Ones @ = Z#
BETANRABRADHAEMEYEE
BRERZ -BBOMARMEA ML
gg - U T IB A SRS IS - T A
BEWBAR RFERZZE—\FH
A-+=H5%MK  Excel OnefE A MmAK
Y=Y N/NEIE o ESPZNET

REEBESNEERBERNEEN
T

$000
For
Investment properties "EYE 418,394
Shareholder’s loans AR E K (304,763)
113,631

Assignment of shareholder’s loans ERIRRER 304,763
Net assets acquired Wiz FEE 418,394
Consideration on acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B AR 2 KB 418,394
Satisfied by: F 4t
Cash B 418,394

Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
the acquisition of subsidiaries:

WENBARELEZRAE KR EE
W) R

$000
Tr

Cash consideration paid

ENRERE

418,394
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25. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF SUBSIDIARIES

25. ZBWENRBARKBEE

(b) On 30 August 2017, the Company, through a wholly-owned b)) RZE—tFN\A=+H ARAEIER
subsidiary, entered into an agreement with an independent H—2EMBRARIE—RBBILE=F
third party to acquire the entire interests of Market Rise Al WIEERARARERE
Limited together with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Able 2EMBRARISXZEREBRAF (5
Business Development Limited (collectively referred to BRIFEEE]NEHER KRR
as “Market Rise Group”), and the shareholder’s loans, at B33 e R (E A814,017,0007T © B
a cash consideration of $814,017,000. Market Rise Group EEFEF BN NLEANTFEANGE
holds an en-bloc residential building at Prince Edward Road FREEHERS - BBH T RANE
West, Kowloon for sales purposes. By analysing the inputs, A DN RGBS AR TS UK
process and output of the company, the acquisitions did not B mUEEKBAR RFER_F
constitute an acquisition of business and was accounted —tF+AZTHZTK  BREERET
for as acquisition of assets. The transaction was completed KAERATRKE AT -
on 20 October 2017 and Market Rise Group became
subsidiaries of the Company accordingly.

The assets acquired and the liabilities recognised at the date RUEAESHNEERERNEER
of acquisition were as follows: Rk
$°000
For

Properties held for sales BEEHEZME 814,017
Shareholder’s loans RERE (722,741)

91,276
Assignment of shareholder’s loans HRRRER 722,741
Net assets acquired Wiz FEE 814,017
Consideration on acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B AR 2 KB 814,017
Satisfied by: XA¢:
Cash Re 814,017

Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
the acquisition of subsidiaries:

WENBLARAELZRERREEE
YRR

$000
Tr

Cash consideration paid BERRERE
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26. SHARE CAPTIAL 26. B
2019 2018
—E-hE “T-N\&
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
RHAEE 8 BROE G 8
‘000 $000 (o Sooo
FE Fr Fi# F
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of $0.01 each BRABEOITH L ER 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: ZER CETRAR:
At 1 April REA—H 709,771 7,098 645,246 6,452
Issuance of new shares under the bonus REARETMETZ
issues (ote) ;e (i) - - 64,525 646
At 31 March R=A=+—H 709,771 7,098 709,771 7,098

Note: Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 26 July 2017, bonus shares were
issued to Shareholders whose names appeared on the register
of members of the Company on 3 August 2017, the record date,
on the basis of one new share credited as fully paid for every ten

shares held.

On 11 August 2017, an amount of $645,247 standing to the credit
of the share premium account was applied in paying up in full
64,524,652 ordinary shares of $0.01 each which were allotted and
issued as fully paid to Shareholders who were entitled to those

bonus shares (see note 27(b)).

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the Company'’s residual assets.

25 .

it -

BREARANR_ZE—EFLA- AR
THRFBFRE LEBNHERRER
RZZE—+FNA=H (RHERH) BIIRK
RABER A MO PRERA - BEREH
B TR AT R R — A BRDIMEBUR &
A7

RZE—tFNA+T—B BRORERAEH
645,247 7T 1Y 3 BR FA 70 51 2 64,524,6520% &
AREEO.0OT T E B - ZEH B B BRTY
BB RBITTHBEERXABRMOBKRE (R
i 5E27(0) ) o

ERREAAGRKRAREIRNE I
FRERARABRRARE LER —RHNKRE
B-BNEARRBNEEMS A EER
EHERFHAL
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27. RESERVES
(@ The Group
Details of the movements in the Group's reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as
follows:

(i)  Share premium
The share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and may be
applied by the Company subject to the provisions, if
any, of its memorandum and articles of association
in paying distributions or dividends to equity
shareholders.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account
unless immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

(ii)  Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 4(i) and ()).

(iij) Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of the
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
4(e).
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27. %
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rEE
AEEEGEDEERARSERE
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T

(i) BRoOEE
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B ARARAERBREREZTS
IR SR A AR A EIRR
4 f2 48 E‘JE”]MX (nE)BARK
f]]/ﬁnf

BRIERBERAINDIRIREE
HIEARR R A A7 A HER
EPE'JHEE’M,I\%K TEIJTT@J%%
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(i) R-FEFE
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(KR BIFERRSN - LA TTHIIR)
27. RESERVES (continued)

27. & (&)

(b) The Company (b) AT
Share Hedging Retained
premium reserve profits Total
B EE e REEF @t
S0oo S00o S000 S0oo
Fr Fr Fr Fr
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+tE@A-H 99,285 477 180,536 280,298
Profit and total comprehensive FERFIRZEKE
income for the year = = 48,556 48,556
Effective portion of changes in FRERANEPTA
fair value of hedging instruments AFEEHNERL S
recognised during the year, MRBIE
net of tax - 165 - 165
Issuance of new shares under the REARETMETIHRN
bonus issues (ote 26) (Hi26) (646) - - (646)
Interim dividend declared and paid BERRIAAEEM
in respect of the current year RERR S (H5H13()
(note 13@) - = (28,391) (28,391)
Final dividend approved in respect of ~ #tAB L —FEHNRBRE
the previous year (ote 13(b)) Wi3x ) - - (25,810) (25,310)
At 31 March 2018 and R-ZE-NE=ZA=1-H
1 April 2018 R-E-\fMA-H 98,639 642 174,891 274,172
Profit and total comprehensive FERFIRZEKE
income for the year - - 186,697 186,697
Effective portion of changes in fair FRERANEPTA
value of hedging instruments ATEZBNENHS
recognised during the year, MBRBIE
net of tax - (401) - (401)
Interim dividend declared and paid BERRIAAEEM
in respect of the current year RERE (HiH156)
(note 13@) = = (28,391) (28,391)
Final dividend approved in respect of ~ #tAB F —FEMRBRE
the previous year (note 13()) (Hi130) - = (41,167) (41,167)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1+-H 98,639 24 292,030 390,910

At 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company, as calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands and the Company's
memorandum and articles of association, was $390,669,000
(2018: $273,530,000).

BERSEEATEARKAAREHESE
AEAEBAUE ARAR_ZE—NE=
A=+ —RAAES R F AR ESBER
5% 1% 48 %8 /5390,669,0007C ( = F — N\ & :
273,530,0007T ) ©
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28. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

28. ZERARFHMRREK

POSITION
2019 2018
—ZE-NE —E-)N\F
$°000 $000
F7T F7T
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI BB L& 152 174
Investment in subsidiaries HEK B R A =* =
Loan to subsidiaries BEXRTHBRR 473,958 476,458
Deferred tax assets R IEEE 572 836
Derivative financial instruments PTEeERmT A 288 769
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABIZEHMEE
through profit or loss 7,220 -
____4821%0 478,237
current assets REBEE
Loan to a subsidiary BERTHB AR 128,131 2,500
Prepayment and other receivables FEAS 3 R E A B W GRIE 1,189,496 1,285,513
Pledged deposits BEBFR 4,457 2,000
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHET 12,294 49,446
1334378 1,339.459
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables H b~ 3B 463 146,426
Bank loans RITER 519,143 172,143
Loan from a subsidiary BB A BIfE 3K 2,500 2,500
5221706 321,069
Net current assets rne&eE®& 937,903 1,018,390
Total assets less current liabilities EEERFRE ARG 1,294,462 1,496,627

* [ess than $1,000
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28. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 28. ZER AT BMRRAE (£)
POSITION (continued)

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Notes $’000 $°000
it F For
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Bank loan RITER 253,954 710,357
Loans from subsidiaries BB R R fE 3K 642,500 505,000
896454 1215357
NET ASSETS EEFE 398,008 281,270
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B A R f# 4
Share capital &N 26 7,098 7,098
Reserves i 27(b) 390,910 274,172
TOTAL EQUITY B 398,008 281,270
On behalf of the Board REESZS
Chan Hung Ming Lau Chi Wah
B A.BA ZEE
Director Director
EZE EZE
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29. SUSIDIARIES 29. BT
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries LNTARABEERFERNEBNES
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the BERBECHMBRARINFE -BREBAIE
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise SN BRNERIIE L BR-
Stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

BEEEGLH
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation and issued and effective Held by the Held by a
Name of subsidiary business paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
BRTR r5E il

WEAREE BIYREEHE EHRREAR BEEER MAQARE ARARE  FEXEK
Able Business Development Limited Hong Kong $1 100% - 100%  Property development
BEERERLA Bk 17T NELER
Dragon Mount Development Limited Hong Kong $1 100% - 100%  Property development
REBRERAR BE 17T NELR
Easton Development Limited Hong Kong $100 100% = 100%  Property holding
REBERERAA Bk 1007C NERE
Eson Development Limited Hong Kong $100 100% - 100%  Property holding
ERERERAA BE 1007 NERE
Grand Tech Construction Hong Kong $5,000,000 100% = 100%  Construction

Company Limited
ERREERAR BE 5,000,0007c jot:
iTech Towers Data Centre Hong Kong $1 100% = 100%  Provision of data centre

Services Limited premises and facilities
EREAET OERAT] BE 17T REBEROIZMF

i

Marvellous Investments Limited Hong Kong $1 100% - 100%  Property holding
KEREERAR BE 17T NERE
Top Regent Investments Limited Hong Kong $1 100% = 100%  Property holding
REREBERAR B8 17T NERE
Wellford Properties Limited Hong Kong $100 100% - 100%  Property investment
BEEXRERAA BE 1007C NERE
Winning Tech Limited Hong Kong $1 100% = 100%  Property investment
EEIBERAR B8 17T NERE
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30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. EAEEE

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to fund its construction business and property development
and investment projects, provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

As at 31 Mar 2019, the Group's current ratio (defined as current
assets divided by current liabilities) was 2.62 times (31 Mar
2018: 3.79 times). The Group's gearing ratio (defined as total
interest-bearing borrowings divided by shareholders’ equity) was
approximately 141.1% (31 Mar 2018: approximately 129.7%).

AEBEREANTRARAREREER
BICENREN URREBEMRERB AR
MEZRMBREERBRHTES SBRERE
i ) 5 48 B B B 41 [ 3 B R 2 DA R A A £
B & AN RS LARE B AN o

REETES N E s REEEEANRE
PAFE$R /= B R 10 ( AJ BEFHBE B = A 15 0K
) BB AR RO I M ARE 2
BiSFE - Y ARLERRNEERHEEAR
Rig e

R F SR A B R AR B AE A S
D00 A5 TR <

R-ZE-—AE=ZA=1+—8B ANEENTD
R (RBEERTBAR) B62E (ZF
—N\F: 379F) AEEMELAAFBHL R
(FrEEREERIEEERD) H141.1% (=%
—\EFE:#4129.7%) °
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.

(@) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
deposits, financial derivative instruments and trade and
other receivables. The Group maintains a defined credit
policy and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with sound
credit ratings and the Group has exposure limit to any
single financial institution. Transactions involving derivative
financial instruments are with counterparties of sound
credit standing. Given their high credit ratings, management
does not expect any of these financial institutions and
counterparties will fail to meet their obligations.

Before entering into construction contracts, assessment
of the potential customers is carried out as part of the
acceptance procedures for the new contracts.

Regular review and follow-up actions are carried out on
overdue amounts of trade receivables from customers which
enable management to assess their recoverability and to
minimise the exposure to credit risk. Trade receivables are
due within 0-30 days from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(@)

Credit risk (continuead)

In respect of rental income from leasing properties, rental
deposits are held to cover potential exposure to credit
risk. An ageing analysis of the receivables is prepared on a
regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise any credit
risk associated with these receivables. Adequate impairment
losses have been made for estimated irrecoverable
amounts.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in a few customers. In view
of their credit standing, good payment record and long
established relationships with the Group, management does
not consider the Group's credit risk to be significant. At the
end of the reporting period, 37.8% and 85.4% (2018: 81.9%
and 94%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk as at 31 March 2019.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all new
customers requiring credit over a certain amount and are
also performed on existing customers on a periodic basis.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and may take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. The Group generally
requires customers to settle progress billings and retentions
receivable in accordance with contracted terms and other
debts in accordance with agreements.

31. B
(&)
(a)

EREEREHTIREAFE

SE Rk (&
AXEMEHENHSWANS A&
EREHERS AEMNBEENEER
a2 o N5 [ T A LI WO IR 0 ARl
Ve B BT AR B R
FIRA B (E B R R EE 2 REK
F e fEET AR B EED SRR M
B E1E -

RBERR AEBSESEFLIERP
GHEEAEERR EREEETR-
RIS MRS rEAEEETNED
iR EEERAAEEEERNEER
Bl REKX - RS HIR  EURER AR
B Bl E37.8%5%85.4% (=& — )\
F 0 81.9%K%94.0% ) 4 E WA 5 B &%
AEEPMAKREFRIE

RZB-NF=ZA=+—0 &EEY
BERHECASEAKREAREERR
HYE A FELR o

AEBHAAERETEEREN
BERYeETERERHE  IREME
RARPETERE RS - s EFFE
HEIREPBENIHS RN R
EANXEES  HEEREFPRHTEER
FARBEPEEMEMEBERE -
AEEBERREFRIEAQGKE
BHEEFAREERE S RRIEHE
REHEMER-

P 4 IR A R 7 2018710 fEpE R 159
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Bt %
(%)

EREEREMIAEAFRE

(@) Credit risk (continued) (@) FERk (&)
The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables REELEENERBERETE 2
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLS, GEHREHEEBFEBNSHETERK
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the ERREREEEEEE BARAE
Group's historical credit loss experience does not indicate ErAAEEREBELCRYERTEAER
significantly different loss patterns for different customer FodBERENGEERAZR  RiE@
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status MR E EEREBELENAEER
is not further distinguished between the Group's different TRBRFERZHE—FED -
customer bases.
The following table provides information about the Group's THREINERAEBRR _T—-NF=
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at A=+t H0EKEZNEERR R
31 March 2019: BHEEEECER:
Gross carrying
amount
excluding
Expected specific Expected
loss rate (%) debtors credit losses
TEERE
FE Uk SR I8 1Y
EHERR IREEASE EHEEER
$000 $000
Fr Fr
Trade receivables PR BR R
Neither past due nor impaired REAR BB TR (E 0.03% 47,909 (14)
Less than 1 month past due BEOR—EA 0.04% 21 —*
Over 1 month but less BE—EARELR=@A
than 3 months past due 8.38% 2,685 (225)
Over 3 months but less BE=EAEALRNEA
than 6 months past due 11.07% 1,229 (136)
Over 6 months but less BEAEAELRT @A
than 12 months past due 11.21% 107 (12)
Over 12 months past due B+ @A 11.24% 377 (44)
52,328 (431)
* Less than $1,000 *  {ER,0007T
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(@)

Credit risk (continuead)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment (see
Note 4(j)(ii) — accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018). At 31 March 2018, trade receivables of $406,000 were
individually determined to be impaired. The aging analysis of
trade receivables by due date are set out in note 20.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to retentions receivable within retention terms and from
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of customers that have a good track record with
the Group. These receivables mainly relate to construction
projects either in progress or at final inspection stage.
Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

31. B
(&)
(a)

EREEREHTIREAFE

&Rk (&)
BHBEEXREBE=-FNERERE
ERIEL - ZFHLRE THEARKRE
Yo £= 38 1 BUR HAMR A 2 AR - E AT
AR Ko A &= [ S PR MR 2 TR B S A
ZRBRAZERZENEZR-

RZZE—\FWUA—HB7 REEIEE
ERIRBEZ BB RE (28 5E4()
(i) —ERE_ZE—NF=ZA=+—
BREHER) RZE—NF=A
=+—H8 " EUER 406,000t EBE
TEARE o IRE HA R B FE W BR 3 A BR
Be 0 M P B 520 o

BE 4 380 H 77 48R (EL 1O R MR IR R
PR ER 15K A B FE U R B SRR AN 3T A 0
BRAOCHENETP -

B 28 BB R OR (B Y FE U R B 4 T B K
SEBRIFFECHENTPEE -ZF
EUREZANERINZERRE
BRAEETIZMERM - RIBERR &
BERSBARZEEHRIIELRERE
B RARGEEERYESAES A
A ERERDBAR R A BB D - AREH
VBB LS EHRI B TMERR-
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. BI¥EREERSMTIENATE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (#%&)
(@) Credit risk (continued) (@ EERk (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade FAEHERERRENEENESE
receivables and contract assets during the year is as follows: BEBREFHMT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
$’000 $°000
Fr FT
At the beginning of the BIEB B G RIZE395%
reporting period under HKAS 39 R B H
406 241
Impact on initial application BRERB B ERE LR
of HKFRS 9 EIRNTE = =
At the beginning of the RS (LET))
reporting period (restated) 406 241
Impairment losses recognised FHRNERRRBEEE
during the year 25 165
At the end of the reporting period R|EHR 431 406
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Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 20.

Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising of
loans to cover the expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the Company’s board of directors. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed funding lines from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

B B 7N 5 B A B K BR 3k N H b R U R
HELEEERRNE TS EES
BT FE20 ©

by RBEZRMRE

AEEETEHNEARBEERNGH
Reel BRESEFRAMEEHR
EFEFWABHARFEFTSHAE K
SENBRAEREREE N RERR
PESFEUREBTERRENR
o AEREGR ARG FEENEET
EVBRBERTRARNEAZESHE
B ENEEHEERMORSHESS
Fo
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq)

(b) Liquidity risk (continuead)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on

3. UHKEREEREMIAAFRE

(%)

(b)) RBETRE (&)
TERFAIAKEZSRHABNEREH
RETAOBEIER  WIIREBAOR

MERTRE

BREREONE (B

F R ARIB IR E MR RITA R ) &
B SRR RARE AR K AR

rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the M&xF HEmMEL
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
The Group ENL
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ENABERER
More than  More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1yearor  lessthan  lessthan More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
-Ex -EN0L  WENL
FRER EMENAR EBRENR  BENL @t REE
$000 $too $000 Stoo St St
L Fr Frr Frr F Fr
At 31 March 2019 “E-hnEZAZt-H
Bank loans FITER 877,828 408,021 2,826,440 138,184 4,250,473 3,970,757
Trade payable, other payablesand ~ ER B EMERFER
accrued charges B 67,787 - - - 67,787 67,787
Retention payables ERREE 37,855 33,999 6,879 - 78,733 78,733
983,470 442,020 2,833,319 138,184 4,396,993 4,117,277
Derivative settied net: RIBHEEMTETIL:
Interest rate swap contracts MEEEAY 5,755 7,486 7,908 - 21,149 19,775
At 31 March 2018 RZB-NE=RA=1-H
Bank loans RITER 486,609 545754 2,884,562 37675 3954600 3,585,345
Trade payable, other payablesand ~ FERTERF - EERZER
accrued charges B ER 200,852 - - - 200,852 200,852
Retention payables ENREFE 4329 25,008 24,997 3,369 96,690 96,690
730,757 570,782 2,909,559 41,044 4,252,142 3,882,287
Derivative settled net: RIBEENTETER:
Interest rate swap contracts FlRBEAY = 2,531 2,839 = 5,370 344
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the
impact of rates changes on interest-bearing borrowings
which predominantly bear floating interest rates. The Group
monitors closely its interest rate exposure and the level of
fixed rate and floating rate borrowing and considers hedging
interest rate exposure should the need arise. The Group's
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out
in (ii) below.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-
bearing borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 23.

() Hedging

Interest rate swaps, denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
have been entered into to achieve an appropriate
mix of fixed and floating rate (mainly Hong Kong
Interbank Offer Rate) exposure consistent with the
Group’s policy. At 31 March 2019, the Group had
interest rate swaps with a notional contract amount
of $1,636,896,000 (2018: $1,645,943,000), which it has
designated as cash flow hedges of the interest rate
risk inherent in its variable rate bank borrowings. At
31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group did not have any
interest rate swaps which were not designated as cash
flow hedging instruments.

The swaps mature within the next four years and have
fixed swap rates ranging from 1.30% to 2.63% (2018:
1.30% t0 2.63%). The net deficit of fair value of swaps
contracts at 31 March 2019 was $19,487,000 (2018: net
surplus of $15,477,000). These amounts are recognised
as derivative financial instruments (see note 24).
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) (#&)
(c) Interest rate risk (continuead) () FE@Ep (&)
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIFEHE
The following table details the interest rate profile of Ti’«%%iﬂ?r&%ﬁii%ﬁimgﬂ
the Group’s net borrowings (as defined above) at the HTEMFRBEHEONT
end of the reporting period, after taking into account % $%E@$&%Eﬁﬂiﬂ’ﬂ%f’xé
the effect of interest rate swaps designated as cash B(EEREXOMEXRER (R
flow hedging instruments (see (i) above). £E3)) -
2019 2018
ZE-hE —Z-1
Effective Eﬁecﬂve
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
BERA% 8 BRFx &8
% $000 % $ooo
% Fr % FL
Net fixed rate borrowings: EEMEHFHE:
Bank loans RITER 4.12 70,357 347 80,000
Variable rate borrowings:  ZEE:
Bank loans RITER 3.71 3,900,400 290 3,505,345
Total net borrowings BEHREE 3,970,757 3,585,345
Net fixed rate borrowings as & BEZUR4E(E
a percentage of total net BIETFEN
borrowings BAk 1.77% 2.23%
(iii)  Sensitivity analysis (iii) SEEZ T

31.

HERBEEREMIAATE

At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit after taxation
and total equity by approximately $32,568,000 (2018:
$29,270,000), in response to the general increase/
decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
borrowing made by the Group which were not hedged
by interest rate swap contracts. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis for the year 2018.

W_BE-AFE=A=+—08 1
TR R EA R A 1001E E
2omATE B S g
REBBRTE R T R R GR
L /1800 #932,568,0007T ( — &
— \%: 29,270,0007T ) - Ith Ty
PR RERE EFH R ATE -

LR E D AT Ty IR R R T R
EE%%%%X%E@#E:I
ERARAEESBEHEMNEEHE
%QFZTMMﬂ@HmL -
T N\FEOWILAREEET
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency

risk as substantially all of the Group's transactions are

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

(d)

Fair value measurement

(i)

3. BEREEREMTIAEAFE

(%)

(d) ShEEmE R
AEE I EEEREAINE R - RS
B BA D LS AETE -

© APEHE

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) HEAFEIENETHEERERE

value

Fair value hierarchy DT EER

The following table presents the fair value of the TREVASESRITARRE

Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of BHAREEEUEREEFENRF

the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised B WEBE BV BRELRSE

into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined 13RAFEFENTEERS B =1E

in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level NFEER - AFEFAEELT

into which a fair value measurement is classified SREE R FT A EUR R A B

is determined with reference to the observability HHMEZEHSBEOT

and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations :  Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

F—RMAE C EERE-AESEAENATE IR EAREERMSHAREESARR

Level 2 valuations :  Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet

Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.
FEoRIEE RSB _RBBHAENQATE THEE—
ENEZHIE - TAIBREE NVERENET S AR -

BOABRBERRERATAE

Level 3 valuations :  Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.
FE=REE D ERTABERNEEHRITENATE.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. REAKREERESMIAAFE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) (#&)
(e) Fair value measurement e) DNEEF=E(£&)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) HZAFETIENEHEEREE
value (continued) (#&)
The Group REHE
Fair value measurement categorised into
AVEINEDEA
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AYE -5 o E=4
$'000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
As at 31 March 2019 RZZ-h§=A=+-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVOC| BAFEGFAEZARS
ZERMAERE 12,710 - 12,710 -
Financial assets at FVTPL BOTEHAER
LEREE 7,220 - 7,220 -
Derivative financial instruments - $T4 £ @ T A~
Interest rate swaps GilESEHiE ) 288 - 288 -
Liabilities Ef
Derivative financial instruments - $74 ¢ BT A~
Interest rate swaps MEHHEL 19,775 - 19,775 -
As at 31 March 2018 RZB-NE=B=1-H
Assets 73
Available-for-sale securities At HEES 13,540 - 13,540 -
Derivative financial instruments - #7144 BT B~
Interest rate swaps GilESTHiE) 15,821 = 15,821 =
Liabilities -1
Derivative financial instruments - $T4 ¢ @ T A~
Interest rate swaps FEEBEH 344 = 344 =
During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, HE_Z-NAFR-T-N\F=
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, A=+—BLEE F—HEKE
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy oMz EEER IRE
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value FRAE AL E o NEE K
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which REERTRENRATFEER
they occurred. B BB ER B
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

(€)

(M)

(ii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of financial assets at FVOCI is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period without any deduction for transaction costs.

The fair value of financial assets at FVTPL is based on
the cash value priced by external and independent
parties at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of interest rate swaps are determined
by applying the discounted cash flow method. It is
calculated as the present value of the estimated
future cash flow that the Group would receive or pay
of each swap at the each payment date based on the
observable yield curves.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’'s and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.

32. COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2019 not provided
for in the Group’s consolidated financial statements were as

3. BEREEREMIAEQFE

(%)

€) AFEE(E)

(M)

(ii)

32. E&iE

BAFPHEIBHEZHEERR R
(%&)

FE RN FEFEATAGERMN
E ¢
BRHEFARMBERRE 2
BEEZ AFERBEHROT
BRE (BATRMR HRA) 5t

g
EH o
FT

BAFEFABRZEHEEN
RN EER RS RN GBI
FTEBZREEE-

MBI A AT RIRTT
NERERAZXSHFEAINEER
AEARIR - AERBER R RS HREK
DS ENES kb AT g
B

WHBELAFETENLHBIT ALY
AFHE
AEBRARTNESHT EIZK
NS SR AN AT B R BRI (E B E
RZE-—NFRZFT—-—NF=H
T+ —HNRAFETEERE
Ho

R-F-NF=ZA=T—HBREBITRREHE
AEEGEPHREBEOEAAEDT

follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-)N\F
$’000 $000
F For
Development of investment property BRICEWE 2,290 72,628
Assets under construction TEEE 14,212 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries Uk B BT B8 2 ) - 378,000
16,502 450,628
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(BRFrRIRERRSN - A TTEIR)
33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

34.

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Company did not have any

material contingent liabilities.

(@)

(o)

33. AREE
RIE—NER-T—

NE=ZA=+—8"

ARFALFEMERLARRE -

NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW STATEMENT 4. IRBEERERWMFT
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (@) BHekBEeZEEYWRIE:
2018
—E—)N\F
$000
For
Cash available on demand BIBEF KA SHHAS 312,063
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities b BMEEGHREBEEZE-_ZT—NF=AH
during the year ended 31 March 2019 —t+t—ALFEHHEEANBELHE
wmr:
Bank loan
IRITER
(note 23)
(K73£23)
$000
For
At 1 April 2018 R-_F-N\E@A-R 3,585,345
Changes from cash flows: REREH
Proceeds from new bank loans RITES ﬁfr?%?)( 1,113,599
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITER (728,187)
Total changes from financing cash flows ARG REMMAZEY 00000 385412
At 31 March 2019 R=ZB-NF=B=+—H 3,970,757
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35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@

170 GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in this consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following material related party transaction
during the year:

35.

EXBEBAIXS

(@ BRAGZRAEMBHRREMID FAHERN
R MAEHIN REBRFRETAT
ERBBRS:

2019 2018

—E—-hF —ZE-N\F

Related party relationship Type of transaction $’000 $°000

FA g 7 B R REER Fr Fir
Spouse of a director Sales of property

—REEF B HEWE 148,000 -

Remuneration of key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the directors as disclosed in note 11
and certain of the highest paid employees and senior
management as disclosed in note 12, is as follow:

0 EBERARNFH (RFELAEEN
&) RS - AT R A H
1 B AR 2 B BN B 12
BEMT

2019 2018

—E-hF —F-N\F

$’000 $000

F For

Short-term employee benefits EHEEBRT 17,671 16,943
Post-employment benefits RIREF 140 144
17,811 17,087

The related party transactions in respect of the remuneration
of directors and chief executives of the Company
constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. However, these transactions are
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of the remuneration
of key management personnel (other than directors and
chief executives) of the Company did not fall under the
definition of connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

RABEEMEEZTRASH MR
HEBR LT R BIF14AE P SRE B B 2
5 AMRIE EMRAF AR - ILERFH A
HemE  NERBMBRIERTE -

ARARATEZEEAR (EEMEETR
ANBE RSN RN BB X 5 W AR RC T AR
AIEVUAS PR EMRIRE L 5 -
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36.

37.

IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

At 31 March 2019, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate holding company of the Group to be Chan HM
Company Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI. This entity
does not produce financial statements available for public use.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 6 June 2019.

36. EEB AT REAEZERAT

EERA RT-NF=ZA=+—H 'K
SENEES QAR REKRERARTANE
J& iE 2 B &5k A 37 @1 Chan HM Company
Limited © 1t 2 B8 3 4R BN R AE AR 0 B 7S
&

37. GEMBHRMEK

KE AR BRER-B—NEAAABEE
FEHA R
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

A 4L M Bl v A Y SR R

The particular of the Group’s investment properties and buildings held

for own use are as follows:

AEENRENERBRAMEZHBNOT

Location Use Tenure
ih 25 Jiik=S FHHA
Investment properties

REYF

iTech Tower 1

No. 28 Pak Tin Par Street

Tsuen Wan

New Territories, Hong Kong

BAEHR
ey

==y
H H 5285

iTech Tower 2

No. 56 Ta Chuen Ping Street

Kwai Chung

New Territories, Hong Kong

BEBEHR
28
FTRE LT 75655

Buildings held for own use

=VE7E S

18/F, No. 39 Chatham Road South

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong
MR 2R Rl 38 F 3957 1812

FRENERD

19/F, No. 39 Chatham Road South

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong
MR %R B 8 B 395k 1918

BENERD

22/F, No. 39 Chatham Road South

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB JLRE D 1B AR BB R 39572218

Shop in the Basement Floor, Shop A and
Shop C on the Ground Floor, and Shop A
on the 1/F of No. 39 Chatham Road South,

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong
NE 2R B 38 R 3955 1 &5 -
HTE A A0 C 8 R 11E AR

EBAELY

Data centre
ZUERH L

Data centre
2RO

Office premises
I /NEL

Office premises
E /NSy ES

Office premises
MAEWE

Sales office
HEMER

Medium-term lease
FRHAFE A

Medium-term lease
FEIFE A

Medium-term lease
FEIFE A

Medium-term lease
R HAFE A

Medium-term lease
FRHAFE 49

Medium-term lease
FRHAFE 4
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